

CITY OF CASTLE HILLS

COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS





100 ne Loop 410, Suite 701 San Antonio, Texas 78216 Ph: (210) 798-1895 Fax: (210) 798-1896

TBPE FIRM NO. F-312

DECEMBER 2024

COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS

Table of Contents

| 5 | ECTION 1 - BID ADVERTISEMENT | . 6 |
|---|--|------------|
| 5 | ECTION 2 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS | . 7 |
| | 1 - DEFINED TERMS | 7 |
| | 2 - BIDDING DOCUMENTS REQUIRED | 7 |
| | 3 - QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS | 7 |
| | 4-EXAMINATION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS, OTHER RELATED DATA, AND SITE | 8 |
| | 5 - PRE-BID CONFERENCE | 9 |
| | 6 - SITE AND OTHER AREAS | 9 |
| | 7 - INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA | . 10 |
| | 8 - BID SECURITY | 10 |
| | 9 - CONTRACT TIMES | 10 |
| | 10 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES | 10 |
| | 11 - SUBSTITUTE AND "OR-EQUAL" ITEMS | 11 |
| | 12 - SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND OTHERS | .11 |
| | 13 - PREPARATION OF BID | .11 |
| | 14 - BASIS OF BID; EVALUATION OF BIDS | 12 |
| | 15 - SUBMITTAL OF BID | 12 |
| | 16 - MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BID | . 13 |
| | 17 - OPENING OF BIDS | 13 |
| | 18 - BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE | . 13 |
| | 19 - AWARD OF CONTRACT | 13 |
| | 20 - CONTRACT SECURITY AND INSURANCE | 14 |
| | 21 - SIGNING OF AGREEMENT | . 14 |
| | 22 - SALES AND USE TAXES | 14 |
| | 23 - RETAINAGE | 5 |
| | 24 - CONTRACTS TO BE ASSIGNED | . 15 |
| | 25 - PARTNERING | 5 |

| SECTION 3 | SCOPE OF WORK | 16 |
|------------|--|---------|
| 1. Descrij | ption of Work | 16 |
| SECTION 4 | 4 PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS | |
| SECTION 5 | GENERAL CONDITIONS | |
| 1 - DEFIN | ITIONS | 18 |
| | INOLOGY | |
| 3 - PRELII | MINARY MATTERS | 23 |
| 4-CONTRA | CTDOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE | 25 |
| 5-AVAILA | ABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS | 27 |
| 6 - BONDS | S AND INSURANCE | 31 |
| 7 - CONTR | RACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES | 37 |
| 8 - OWNE | R'S RESPONSIBILITIES | 46 |
| 9 - OWNE | R'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION | 47 |
| 10 - CHAN | GES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS | 50 |
| 11-COST (| OF THE WORK; CASH ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WOR | 52 |
| 12 - CHAN | GE OF CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIMES | 54 |
| 13-TESTS | AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIV | EWORK50 |
| 14 - PAYM | IENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION | 59 |
| 15 - SUSPE | ENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION | 65 |
| 16 - DISPU | JTE RESOLUTION | 67 |
| 17 - MISC | ELLANEOUS | 67 |
| SECTION (| 6 SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS | 69 |
| 1 - DEFIN | ITIONS & TERMINOLOGY | 69 |
| 2 – AVAIL | ABILITY OF LANDS | 69 |
| 3 – SUBSU | RFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS | 69 |
| 4 – CERTI | FICATES OF INSURANCE | 69 |
| 5 – STREE | T AND DRIVEWAY CLOSING | 74 |
| 6 – HAZAI | RD COMMUNICATIONS PROGRAM | 74 |
| 7 – WATE | R FOR CONSTRUCTION | 75 |
| 8 - POWEI | R FOR CONSTRUCTION | 75 |
| 9 - SANITA | ARY PROVISIONS | 75 |
| SECTION 7 | WAGES AND COMPENSATION | 76 |

| 1 - GENERAL STATEMENT | 76 |
|---|------|
| 2 - WAGE & HOUR OFFICE, PUBLIC WORKS, RESPONSIBILITIES | 76 |
| 3 - CLAIMS & DISPUTES PERTAINING TO WAGE RATES | 77 |
| 4 - BREACH OF WAGE & LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS | 77 |
| 5-EMPLOYMENT OF LABORERS/MECHANICS NOT LISTED IN WAGE DETERMINATION DECISION. | ON 7 |
| 6 - OVERTIME COMPENSATION ON NON-FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS | 77 |
| 7 - PAYMENT OF CASH EQUIVALENT FRINGE BENEFITS | 78 |
| 8 - WORK CONDUCTED ON HOLIDAYS – NON-FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS | 78 |
| 9 - UNDERPAYMENT OF WAGES OR SALARIES | 78 |
| 10-POSTING WAGE DETERMINATION DECISIONS AND NOTICE TO LABORERS'/MECHANICS' STATEMENTS | 79 |
| 11 - PAYROLLS & BASIC PAYROLL RECORDS | 80 |
| 12 - LABOR DISPUTES | 81 |
| 13 - COMPLAINTS, PROCEEDINGS, OR TESTIMONY BY EMPLOYEES | 81 |
| 14 - "ANTI-KICKBACK" PROVISION | 81 |
| 15 - "FALSE INFORMATION" | 82 |
| 16 - JOB SITE CONDITIONS | 82 |
| 17 - EMPLOYMENT OF CERTAIN PERSONS PROHIBITED | 82 |
| 18 - PROVISIONS TO BE INCLUDED IN SUBCONTRACTS | 83 |
| 19 - GENERAL INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR CLAUSE | 83 |
| 20 - HOT GOODS CLAUSE | 83 |
| 21 - PROTECTION OF LIVES AND HEALTH | 83 |
| 22 - ANTI-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT | 84 |
| SECTION8 OTHER CONDITIONS | 85 |
| 1 - MATERIAL SUBMITTAL | 85 |
| 2 - SCHEDULE OF WORK | 85 |
| 3 - SEQUENCE OF WORK | 85 |
| 4 - NOTIFICATION | 85 |
| 5 - STREET CLOSING | 85 |
| 6 - BARRICADES AND FLAGMEN | 85 |
| 7 - WATER FOR CONSTRUCTION | 86 |
| 8 - BID OUANTITIES | 86 |

| 9 - UTILITY AND | SIGN ADJUSTMENT | 86 | | | |
|-------------------------------------|---|-----|--|--|--|
| 10 - WATER VALV | E COVERS, MANHOLES, AND STREET REFLECTORS | 86 | | | |
| 11 - INSPECTION | V | 86 | | | |
| 12 - DAMAGE TO | EXISTING STREETS | 86 | | | |
| 13 - CONDITION | OF THE SITE | 87 | | | |
| 14 - PROTECTION | OF WORK, PROPERTY AND PERSONS | 87 | | | |
| 15 - CARE AND PI | ROTECTION OF PROPERTY | 87 | | | |
| 16 - PROTECTION | N OF LIVES AND HEALTH | 88 | | | |
| 17 - PROJECT CO | ONSTRUCTION SITE | 88 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT A | PREVAILING WAGES | 89 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT B | BID FORM | 95 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT C | BID BOND | 106 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT D | STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT | 109 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT E | NOTICE TO PROCEED | 116 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT F | PERFORMANCE BOND | 117 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT G | PAYMENT BOND | 121 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT H | CONTRACTOR'S DISCLOSURE STATEMENT | 125 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT I | TERMS & CONDITIONS | 127 | | | |
| ATTACHMENTJ | HAZARD COMMUNICATIONS | 134 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT K | CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE | 135 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT L | FORM 1295 - TEXAS ETHICS COMMISSION | 137 | | | |
| ATTACHMENT M | LIST OF GOVERNING SPECIFICATIONS | 138 | | | |
| | | | | | |
| CHECK LIST (| OF ITEMS TO SUBMIT WITH BID | | | | |
| □ Addenda (if any) | | | | | |
| □ Bid Bond | | | | | |
| □ Bid Form | | | | | |
| ☐ Contractor's Disclosure Statement | | | | | |
| □ Conflic | ct of Interest Questionnaire | | | | |
| ☐ Proof o | of Insurance including WC | | | | |

SECTION 1 - BID ADVERTISEMENT

Advertisement for **COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS** for the City of Castle Hills.

Sealed bids will be received until **January 9, 2025, at 2:00 P.M.** by the City Secretary at the City of Castle Hills City Hall, 209 Lemonwood, Castle Hills, TX 78213. Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at **2:00 p.m. on January 9, 2025,** in the City Council Chamber of the City Hall located at 209 Lemonwood, Castle Hills, TX 78213.

The city is proposing to construct two (2) pavilions within Commons Park. The pavilions will include lighting/electrical and masonry (stone) wraps around each column. Concrete paving is being proposed for the pavilion base/foundations. The two ends of the concrete paving will also include concrete paver insets for a future "donor walk/plaza". In addition, the project proposes seven (7) concrete "sculpture pedestals" for future art displays. Each pedestal will include an electrical outlet.

PLEASE NOTE: The two pavilions are being provided by the City of Castle Hills, so should not be included in bids.

Bid/Contract Documents, including Drawings and Technical Specifications are located at www.civcastusa.com. There is no cost to view the bid documents and can be downloaded and printed through the website. Sets of hard copies of the Bid Documents will not be sold.

For any questions regarding this solicitation, technical questions or additional information, please contact David Beyer, PLA, with Halff Associates, Inc.., in writing via email, at dbeyer@halff.com until 4:00 p.m. on December 31, 2024. Answers to the questions will be posted to www.civcastusa.com by 4:00 p.m. on January 3, 2025, or included as part of an addendum.

Bidders must use the bid form provided in the specifications and submit bid in a sealed envelope. The outside of the envelope must be clearly endorsed "COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS", ATTN: CITY SECRETARY. Each bid shall be accompanied by a bid guarantee in the form of a certified check, cashier's check, or bid bond in the amount of five percent (5%) of the total bid price. Any bid received after closing time will be rejected and returned unopened.

The successful bidder will be required to furnish a one hundred percent (100%) Performance Bond and a one hundred percent (100%) Payment Bond.

The City of Castle Hills reserves the right to reject any and all bids, to award the bid to the lowest responsible bidder or to the bidder who provides the best value to the City, and to waive any informality or technicality in the bid. The City intends to take action within sixty (60) days after the bid opening.

SECTION 2 - INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1 - DEFINED TERMS

- 1.1 Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders will have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions. Additional terms used in these Instructions to Bidders have the meanings indicated below which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof:
 - A. Bidder--The individual or entity who submits a Bid directly to OWNER.
 - B. Issuing Office--The office from which the Bidding Documents are to be issued and where the bidding procedures are to be administered.
 - C. Successful Bidder--The lowest responsible Bidder submitting a responsive Bid to whom OWNER (on the basis of OWNER's evaluation as hereinafter provided) makes an award.
 - D. Owner City of Castle Hills
 - E. Landscape Architect Halff Associates, Inc.

2 - BIDDING DOCUMENTS REQUIRED

- 2.1 Complete Bidding Documents are available electronically only and may be downloaded online at www.civcastusa.com.
- 2.2 Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in preparing Bids; OWNER assumes no responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of Bidding Documents.
- 2.3 OWNER, in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms, do so only for the purpose of obtaining Bids for the Work and do not confer a license or grant for any other use.

3 - QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS

- 3.1 To demonstrate Bidder's qualifications to perform the Work, within five days of OWNER's request Bidder shall submit written evidence such as financial data, previous experience, present commitments, and such other data as may be called for below:
 - A. Name, address and telephone number of the bonding company, authorized to do business in the State of Texas, which would furnish Payment and Performance Bonds in the amount of your bid;
 - B. Name, address and telephone number of the insurance company, authorized to do business in the State of Texas, which would furnish Certificate(s) of Insurance per the requirements in the Other Conditions and General Conditions.
 - C. If CONTRACTOR plans to utilize subcontractors for this project, also furnish all the requested information on the subcontractor's firm(s).

- D. CONTRACTOR shall complete and submit with his bid, CONTRACTOR'S Disclosure Statement, which form is included in this document.
- E. CONTRACTOR shall submit with his bid, a copy of his Worker's Compensation insurance certificate.

4 - EXAMINATION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS, OTHER RELATED DATA, AND SITE

- 4.1 Subsurface and Physical Conditions
 - A. There are no reports of explorations and test of subsurface conditions for this project.
- 4.2 Underground Facilities
 - A. Information and data shown or indicated in the Bidding Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or contiguous to the Site is based upon information and data furnished to OWNER by owners of such Underground Facilities, including OWNER, or others.
- 4.3 Hazardous Environmental Condition
 - A. There are no reports or drawings relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition identified at the Site.
- 4.4 Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospective Bidders with respect to subsurface conditions, other physical conditions and Underground Facilities, and possible changes in the Bidding Documents due to differing or unanticipated conditions. Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospective Bidders with respect to a Hazardous Environmental Condition at the Site, if any, and possible changes in the Contract Documents due to any Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site which was not shown or indicated in the Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be within the scope of the Work.
- 4.5 Reference is made to the identification of the general nature of other work that is to be performed at the Site by OWNER or others (such as utilities and other prime contractors) that relates to the Work for which a Bid is to be submitted. On request, OWNER will provide to each Bidder for examination access to or copies of Contract Documents (other than portions thereof related to price) for such other work.
- 4.6 It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid to:
 - A. examine and carefully study the Bidding Documents, including any Addenda and the other related data identified in the Bidding Documents;
 - B. visit the Site and become familiar with and satisfy Bidder as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work;
 - C. become familiar with and satisfy Bidder as to all federal, state, and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, or performance of the Work;

- D. obtain and carefully study (or assume responsibility for doing so) all additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface, and Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect cost, progress, or performance of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder, including any specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly required by the Bidding Documents, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto;
- E. agree at the time of submitting its Bid that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of its Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid and within the times and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents;
- F. become aware of the general nature of the work to be performed by OWNER and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents;
- G. correlate the information known to Bidder, information and observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data with the Bidding Documents;
- H. promptly give OWNER written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder discovers in the Bidding Documents and confirm that the written resolution thereof by OWNER is acceptable to Bidder; and
- I. determine that the Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for the performance of the Work.
- 4.7 The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that Bidder has complied with every requirement, that without exception the Bid is premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Bidding Documents and applying any specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction that may be shown or indicated or expressly required by the Bidding Documents, that Bidder has given OWNER written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, and discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents and the written resolutions thereof by OWNER are acceptable to Bidder, and that the Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performing and furnishing the Work.

5 - PRE-BID CONFERENCE

5.1 Not applicable

6 - SITE AND OTHER AREAS

The Site is identified in the Bidding Documents. All additional lands and access thereto required for temporary construction facilities, construction equipment, or storage of materials and equipment to be incorporated in the Work are to be obtained and paid for by CONTRACTOR.

7 - INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA

- 7.1 All questions about the meaning or intent of the Bidding Documents are to be submitted to ENGINEER via email with "COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS" placed in the subject line to David Beyer, PLA, Halff Associates, Inc. at DBEYER@HALFF.COM. Once an email is received by the ENGINEER, a received response will be emailed back to the sender. It is the sender's responsibility to verify receipt of email. Questions will be accepted until 4:00 p.m. on December 31, 2024. Answers to the questions will be posted to www.civcastusa.com by 4:00 p.m. on January 3, 2025, or included as part of an addendum.
- 7.2 Addenda may be issued to clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Documents as deemed advisable by OWNER.

8 - BID SECURITY

- 8.1 A Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to OWNER in an amount of 5% of Bidder's maximum Bid price and in the form of a certified check, a cashier's check, or a Bid Bond issued by a surety meeting the requirements set forth herewith.
- 8.2 The Bid security of the Successful Bidder will be retained until such Bidder has executed the Contract Documents, furnished the required contract security and met the other conditions of the Notice of Award, whereupon the Bid security will be returned. If the Successful Bidder fails to execute and deliver the Contract Documents and furnish the required contract security within 15 days after the Notice of Award, OWNER may annul the Notice of Award and the Bid security of that Bidder will be forfeited. The Bid security of other Bidders whom OWNER believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be retained by OWNER until the earlier of seven days after the Effective Date of the Agreement or 61 days after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by such Bidders will be returned.
- 8.3 Within seven days from the date the bid is awarded by City Council, bid securities in the form of a Certified Check or a Cashier's Check of non-successful Bidders will be returned.

9 - CONTRACT TIMES

9.1 The number of days within which, or the dates by which, the Work is to be (a) Substantially Completed and (b) also completed and ready for final payment are set forth in the Agreement. The work to be performed under this contract shall commence within the time stipulated by the City in the Notice to Proceed and shall be fully completed within **sixty (60) calendar days** thereafter.

10 - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

10.1 Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, are set forth in the Agreement (Section 6.3 of Performance Bond).

11 - SUBSTITUTE AND "OR-EQUAL" ITEMS

11.1 The Contract, if awarded, will be on the basis of materials and equipment specified or described in the Bidding Documents without consideration of possible substitute or "or-equal" items. Whenever it is specified or described in the Bidding Documents that a substitute or "or-equal" item of material or equipment may be furnished or used by CONTRACTOR if acceptable to OWNER, application for such acceptance will not be considered by OWNER until after the Effective Date of the Agreement. The procedure for submission of any such application by CONTRACTOR and consideration by OWNER is set forth in the General Conditions and may be supplemented in the General Requirements.

12 - SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS, AND OTHERS

- 12.1 If the Supplementary Conditions require the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, individuals, or entities to be submitted to OWNER in advance of a specified date prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement, the apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so requested, shall within five days after Bid opening, submit to OWNER a list of all such Subcontractors, Suppliers, individuals, or entities proposed for those portions of the Work for which such identification is required. Such list shall be accompanied by an experience statement with pertinent information regarding similar projects evidence of qualification for each such Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity if requested by OWNER. If OWNER, after due investigation, has reasonable objection to any proposed Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity, OWNER may, before the Notice of Award is given, request apparent Successful Bidder to submit a substitute, without an increase in the Bid.
- 12.2 If apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, OWNER may award the Contract to the next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, Suppliers, individuals, or entities. Declining to make requested substitutions will not constitute grounds for forfeiture of the Bid security of any Bidder. Any Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity so listed and against which OWNER makes no written objection prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be deemed acceptable to OWNER subject to revocation of such acceptance after the Effective Date of the Agreement.
- 12.3 CONTRACTOR shall not be required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, individual, or entity against whom CONTRACTOR has reasonable objection.

13 - PREPARATION OF BID

- 13.1 The Bid form is included with the Bidding Documents.
- 13.2 All blanks on the Bid form shall be completed by clearly printing in ink or by typewriter and the Bid signed.
- 13.3 A Bid by a corporation shall be executed in the corporate name by the president or a vice-president or other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The corporate seal shall be affixed and attested by the secretary or an assistant secretary. The corporate address and state of incorporation shall be shown below the signature.

- 13.4 A Bid by a partnership shall be executed in the partnership name and signed by a partner (whose title must appear under the signature), accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The official address of the partnership shall be shown below the signature.
- 13.5 A Bid by a limited liability company shall be executed in the name of the firm by a member and accompanied by evidence of authority to sign. The state of formation of the firm and the official address of the firm must be shown below the signature.
- 13.6 A Bid by an individual shall show the Bidder's name and official address.
- 13.7 A Bid by a joint venture shall be executed by each joint venturer in the manner indicated on the Bid form. The official address of the joint venture must be shown below the signature.
- All names shall be typed or clearly printed in ink below the signatures.
- 13.9 The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all Addenda, the numbers of which shall be filled in on the Bid form.
- 13.10 The address, telephone number, and email address for communications regarding the Bid shall be shown.
- 13.11 The Bid shall contain evidence of Bidder's authority and qualification to do business in the state where the Project is located or covenant to obtain such qualification prior to award of the Contract. Bidder's state contractor license number for the state of the Project, if any, shall also be shown on the Bid form.

14 - BASIS OF BID; EVALUATION OF BIDS

14.1 Lump Sum

- A. Bidders shall submit a Lump Sum price for the total project per plans and specifications.
- B. Discrepancies between words and figures will be resolved in favor of the words.
- The Bid price shall include such amounts as the Bidder deems proper for overhead and profit on account of cash allowances, if any, named in the Contract Documents.

15 - SUBMITTAL OF BID

15.1 Each prospective Bidder will be furnished with one copy of the Bidding Documents.

15.2 For consideration, a Bid shall be submitted no later than the date and time prescribed and at the place indicated in the bid advertisement and shall be enclosed in an opaque sealed envelope plainly marked with "COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS", the name and address of Bidder, and shall be accompanied by the Bid security and other required documents. If a Bid is sent by mail or other delivery system, the sealed envelope containing the Bid shall be enclosed in a separate envelope plainly marked on the outside with the notation "BID ENCLOSED". A mailed Bid shall be addressed to:

City of Castle Hills City Hall 209 Lemonwood Castle Hills, TX 78213

16 - MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BID

- 16.1 Once a Bid is submitted, it may be withdrawn or retrieved for the purpose of modification prior to the deadline date and time. If a Bid is retrieved for modification, it is the Bidders responsibility to make sure the bid is properly sealed and labeled and resubmitted prior to the deadline.
- 16.2 If within 24 hours after Bids are opened any Bidder provides a duly signed written notice with OWNER and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of OWNER that there was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its Bid, that Bidder may withdraw its Bid, and the Bid security will be returned. Thereafter, if the Work is rebid, that Bidder will be disqualified from further bidding on the Work.

17 - OPENING OF BIDS

17.1 Bids will be opened at the time and place indicated in the advertisement or invitation to Bid and, unless obviously non-responsive, read aloud publicly.

18 - BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE

18.1 All Bids will remain subject to acceptance for the period of time stated in the Bid form.

19 - AWARD OF CONTRACT

19.1 OWNER reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, including without limitation, nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional Bids. OWNER further reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and evaluation, to be non-responsible. OWNER may also reject the Bid of any Bidder if OWNER believes that it would not be in the best interest of the Project to make an award to that Bidder. OWNER also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price, time, or changes in the Work and to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Bidder.

- More than one Bid for the same Work from an individual or entity under the same or different names will not be considered. Reasonable grounds for believing that any Bidder has an interest in more than one Bid for the Work may be cause for disqualification of that Bidder and the rejection of all Bids in which that Bidder has an interest.
- 19.3 In evaluating Bids, OWNER will consider whether or not the Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, unit prices and other data, as may be requested in the Bid Form or prior to the Notice of Award.
- 19.4 In evaluating Bidders, OWNER will consider the qualifications of Bidders and the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities proposed for those portions of the Work for which the identity of Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities must be submitted.
- 19.5 OWNER may conduct such investigations as OWNER deems necessary to establish the responsibility, qualifications, and financial ability of Bidders, proposed Subcontractors, Suppliers, individuals, or entities to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 19.6 City Council will either reject any or all bid or award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder or to the bidder who provides goods or services at the best value for the municipality.

20 - CONTRACT SECURITY AND INSURANCE

When the Successful Bidder delivers the executed Agreement to OWNER, it must be accompanied by such Bonds and certificates of insurance.

21 - SIGNING OF AGREEMENT

21.1 When OWNER gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it shall be accompanied by the required number of unsigned counterparts of the Agreement with the other Contract Documents which are identified in the Agreement as attached thereto. Within 15 days thereafter, Successful Bidder shall sign and deliver the required number of counterparts of the Agreement and attached documents to OWNER. Within ten days thereafter, OWNER shall deliver one fully signed counterpart to Successful Bidder with a complete set of the Drawings with appropriate identification.

22 - SALES AND USE TAXES

- 22.1 The City is an exempt entity for the purpose of sale tax.
 - A. The purchase of tangible personal property or a taxable service for this project is exempt from sales tax to the extent allowed by Title 34, Texas Administration Code §3.291.
 - B. Bidders must include all applicable taxes in their cost of their work.
 - C. Exemption notice will be provided upon request.

.

23 - RETAINAGE

23.1 Provisions concerning CONTRACTOR's rights to deposit securities in lieu of retainage are set forth in the Agreement.

24 - CONTRACTS TO BE ASSIGNED

24.1 Bidders may examine the documents for these contracts at the Issuing Office.

25 - PARTNERING

25.1 OWNER does not intend to participate in a partnering process with CONTRACTOR.

SECTION 3 SCOPE OF WORK

1. Description of Work

Fabricate two (2) pavilions within Commons Park. The pavilions will include lighting/electrical and masonry (stone) wraps around each column, for a total of eight (8) columns. Concrete paving is being proposed for the pavilion base/foundations. The east and west ends of the concrete paving will also include concrete paver insets for a future "donor walk/plaza". In addition, the project proposes seven (7) concrete "sculpture pedestals" for future art displays. Each pedestal will include an electrical outlet. Minor grading/drainage improvements will be necessary to divert water away from the proposed pavilions and concrete paving. Sod will be required at all disturbed areas, and contractor will be responsible for watering until grass is established.

Pavilions are being provided by City of Castle Hills. However, Contractor responsible for erection/installation of pavilions.

SECTION 4 PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

- 1. Unless otherwise noted, modified by this section, or directed by the ENGINEER, all materials and methods of construction shall be in accordance with City of San Antonio, San Antonio Water System, CPS Energy and TxDOT Standard Specifications for Construction (most current edition) and associated special provisions.
- 2. City of San Antonio, San Antonio Water System and TxDOT Standard Specifications for Construction and associated Special Provisions are made a part of this section by reference. It is the responsibility of all bidders to be familiar with these documents prior to submitting a bid. All items are available online at:

http://www.sanantonio.gov/TCI/CurrentVendorResources/StandardSpecificationsandDetails.aspx

https://apps.saws.org/business_center/specs/constspecs/

https://www.dot.state.tx.us/business/specifications.htm

- 3. All spoil materials salvaged by operations shall become the property of the contractor. Reuse for subsequent items in this contract will require the prior approval of the Engineer.
- 4. Unless specifically identified with a pay item, excavation and the removal of existing materials shall be considered unclassified excavation and subsidiary to completion of the project.
- 5. The contractor shall secure TPDES permits prior to mobilization. In addition to measures provided for in the permit, the Contractor also shall provide silt fence, sediment traps and other Sediment Control measures as directed by the ENGINEER. All sediment control measures and cleaning of existing streets impacted by the contractor's work shall be subsidiary to completion of the project.
- 6. Temporary Traffic Control shall conform to Part 6, Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (TMUTCD), current edition. (No Separate Pay).
- 7. Contractor will be responsible for all material testing as outlined in Section 13 of the General Conditions.
- 8. Contractor shall match existing sidewalk where sidewalk replacement is required.
- 9. Contractor shall be responsible for acquiring all permits.
- 10. Contractor shall regrade and repair any landscaping adjacent to any concrete curb, curb and gutter, sidewalk, and driveway replacement for a width of five (5) feet and adjacent to any edge of pavement for a width five (5) feet by regrading the area with 4" topsoil and replacing seed, sod, rocks, irrigation, signs, etc. To match pre-project conditions. This work will not be paid for separately but shall be considered subsidiary to the installation of the concrete curb, curb and gutter, sidewalk, and driveway and asphalt.

SECTION 5 GENERAL CONDITIONS

1 - DEFINITIONS

Defined Terms – Wherever used in the Contract Documents and printed with initial or all capital letters, the terms listed below will have the meanings indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.

- A. Addenda--Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Requirements or the Contract Documents.
- B. Agreement--The written instrument which is evidence of the agreement between OWNER and CONTRACTOR covering the Work.
- C. Application for Payment--The form acceptable to OWNER which is to be used by CONTRACTOR during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
- D. Asbestos--Any material that contains more than one percent asbestos and is friable or is releasing asbestos fibers into the air above current action levels established by the United States Occupational Safety and Health Administration.
- E. Bid--The offer or proposal of a bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work to be performed.
- F. Bidding Documents--The Bidding Requirements and the proposed Contract Documents (including all Addenda issued prior to receipt of Bids).
- G. Bidding Requirements--The Advertisement or Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, Bid security form, if any, and the Bid form with any supplements.
- H. Bonds--Performance and payment bonds and other instruments of security.
- I. Change Order--A document recommended by OWNER which is signed by CONTRACTOR and OWNER and authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement.
- J. Claim--A demand or assertion by OWNER or CONTRACTOR seeking an adjustment of Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. A demand for money or services by a third party is not a Claim.
- K. Contract--The entire and integrated written agreement between the OWNER and CONTRACTOR concerning the Work. The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, whether written or oral.

- L. Contract Documents--The Contract Documents establish the rights and obligations of the parties and include the Agreement, Addenda (which pertain to the Contract Documents), CONTRACTOR's Bid (including documentation accompanying the Bid and any post Bid documentation submitted prior to the Notice of Award) when attached as an exhibit to the Agreement, the Notice to Proceed, the Bonds, these General Conditions, the Supplementary Conditions, the Specifications and the Drawings as the same are more specifically identified in the Agreement, together with all Written Amendments, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, and OWNER's written interpretations and clarifications issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement. Approved Shop Drawings and the reports and drawings of subsurface and physical conditions are not Contract Documents. Only printed or hard copies of the items listed in this paragraph are Contract Documents. Files in electronic media format of text, data, graphics, and the like that may be furnished by OWNER to CONTRACTOR are not Contract Documents.
- M. Contract Price--The moneys payable by OWNER to CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents as stated in the Agreement.
- N. Contract Times--The number of days or the dates stated in the Agreement to: (i) achieve Substantial Completion; and (ii) complete the Work so that it is ready for final payment as evidenced by OWNER's approval of final payment.
- O. CONTRACTOR--The individual or entity with whom OWNER has entered into the Agreement.
- P. Drawings--That part of the Contract Documents prepared or approved by OWNER which graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by CONTRACTOR. Shop Drawings and other CONTRACTOR submittals are not Drawings as so defined.
- Q. Effective Date of the Agreement--The date indicated in the Agreement on which it becomes effective, but if no such date is indicated, it means the date on which the Agreement is signed and delivered by the last of the two parties to sign and deliver.
- R. OWNER's Consultant--An individual or entity having a contract with OWNER to furnish services as OWNER's independent professional associate or consultant with respect to the Project and who is identified as such in the Supplementary Conditions.
- S. Field Order--A written order issued by OWNER which requires minor changes in the Work, but which does not involve a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Times.
- T. Hazardous Environmental Condition--The presence at the Site of Asbestos, PCBs, Petroleum,
- U. Hazardous Waste or Radioactive Material in such quantities or circumstances that may present a substantial danger to persons or property exposed thereto in connection with the Work.

- V. Hazardous Waste--The term Hazardous Waste shall have the meaning provided in Section 1004 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 USC Section 6903) as amended from time to time.
- W. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations-- Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.
- X. Liens--Charges, security interests, or encumbrances upon Project funds, real property, or personal property.
- Y. Milestone--A principal event specified in the Contract Documents relating to an intermediate completion date or time prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.
- Z. Notice of Award--The written notice by OWNER to the apparent successful bidder stating that upon timely compliance by the apparent successful bidder with the conditions precedent listed therein, OWNER will sign and deliver the Agreement.
- AA. Notice to Proceed--A written notice given by OWNER to CONTRACTOR fixing the date on which the Contract Times will commence to run and on which CONTRACTOR shall start to perform the Work under the Contract Documents.
- BB. OWNER--The individual, entity, public body, or authority with whom CONTRACTOR has entered into the Agreement and for whom the Work is to be performed.
- CC. Partial Utilization--Use by OWNER of a substantially completed part of the Work for the purpose for which it is intended (or a related purpose) prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.
- DD. PCBs--Polychlorinated biphenyls.
- EE. Petroleum- Petroleum, including crude oil or any fraction thereof which is liquid at standard conditions of temperature and pressure (60 degrees Fahrenheit and 14.7 pounds per square inch absolute), such as oil, petroleum, fuel oil, oil sludge, oil refuse, gasoline, kerosene, and oil mixed with other non-Hazardous Waste and crude oils.
- FF. Project--The total construction of which the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole, or a part as may be indicated elsewhere in the Contract Documents.
- GG. Project Manual--The bound documentary information prepared for bidding and constructing the Work. A listing of the contents of the Project Manual, which may be bound in one or more volumes, is contained in the table(s) of contents.
- HH. Radioactive Material--Source, special nuclear, or byproduct material as defined by the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (42 USC Section 2011 et seq.) as amended from time to time.
- II. Resident Project Representative--The authorized representative of OWNER who may be assigned to the Site or any part thereof.

- JJ. Samples--Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of some portion of the Work and which establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will be judged.
- KK. Shop Drawings--All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information which are specifically prepared or assembled by or for CONTRACTOR and submitted by CONTRACTOR to illustrate some portion of the Work.
- LL. Site--Lands or areas indicated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by OWNER upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and easements for access thereto, and such other lands furnished by OWNER which are designated for the use of CONTRACTOR.
- MM. Specifications--That part of the Contract Documents consisting of written technical descriptions of materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work and certain administrative details applicable thereto.
- NN. Subcontractor--An individual or entity having a direct contract with CONTRACTOR or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work at the Site.
- OO. Substantial Completion--The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of OWNER, the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms "substantially complete" and "substantially completed" as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.
- PP. Supplementary Conditions--That part of the Contract Documents which amends or supplements these General Conditions.
- QQ. Supplier--A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, material man, or vendor having a direct contract with CONTRACTOR or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by CONTRACTOR or any Subcontractor.
- RR. Underground Facilities--All underground pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other such facilities or attachments, and any encasements containing such facilities, including those that convey electricity, gases, steam, liquid petroleum products, telephone or other communications, cable television, water, wastewater, storm water, other liquids or chemicals, or traffic or other control systems.
- SS. Unit Price Work--Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.
- TT. Work--The entire completed construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be provided under the Contract Documents. Work includes and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such construction, and furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction, all as required by the Contract Documents.

- UU. Work Change Directive--A written statement to CONTRACTOR issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement and signed by OWNER ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, or responding to differing or unforeseen subsurface or physical conditions under which the Work is to be performed or to emergencies. A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is evidence that the parties expect that the change ordered or documented by a Work Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order following negotiations by the parties as to its effect, if any, on the Contract Price or Contract Times.
- VV. Written Amendment--A written statement modifying the Contract Documents, signed by OWNER and CONTRACTOR on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement and normally dealing with the non-engineering or nontechnical rather than strictly construction-related aspects of the Contract Documents.

2 - TERMINOLOGY

A. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives

- 1. Whenever in the Contract Documents the terms "as allowed," "as approved," or terms of like effect or import are used, or the adjectives "reasonable," "suitable," "acceptable," "proper," "satisfactory," or adjectives of like effect or import are used to describe an action or determination of OWNER as to the Work, it is intended that such action or determination will be solely to evaluate, in general, the completed Work for compliance with the requirements of and information in the Contract Documents and conformance with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as shown or indicated in the Contract Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such term or adjective shall not be effective to assign to OWNER any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of the Contract Documents.
- B. Day -- The word "day" shall constitute a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next midnight.
- C. Defective -- The word "defective," when modifying the word "Work," refers to Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient in that it does not conform to the Contract Documents or does not meet the requirements of any inspection, reference standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged prior to OWNER's approval of final payment (unless responsibility for the protection thereof has been assumed by OWNER at Substantial Completion.

D. Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide

1. The word "furnish," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to supply and deliver said services, materials, or equipment to the Site (or some other specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.

- 2. The word "install," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to put into use or place in final position said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 3. The words "perform" or "provide," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 4. When "furnish," "install," "perform," or "provide" is not used in connection with services, materials, or equipment in a context clearly requiring an obligation of CONTRACTOR, "provide" is implied.
- E. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, words or phrases which have a well-known technical or construction industry or trade meaning are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meaning.

3 - PRELIMINARY MATTERS

3.1 Delivery of Bonds

A. When CONTRACTOR delivers the executed Agreements to OWNER, CONTRACTOR shall also deliver to OWNER such Bonds as CONTRACTOR may be required to furnish.

3.2 Copies of Documents

A. OWNER shall furnish to CONTRACTOR up to two copies of the Contract Documents. Additional copies will be furnished upon request at the cost of reproduction.

3.3 Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed

A. The Contract Times will commence to run on the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement or, if a Notice to Proceed is given, on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed. A Notice to Proceed may be given at any time within 30 days after the Effective Date of the Agreement. In no event will the Contract Times commence to run later than the sixtieth day after the day of Bid opening or the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement, whichever date is earlier.

3.4 Starting the Work

A. CONTRACTOR shall start to perform the Work on the date when the Contract Times commence to run. No Work shall be done at the Site prior to the date on which the Contract Times commence to run.

3.5 Before Starting Construction

- A. CONTRACTOR's Review of Contract Documents: Before undertaking each part of the Work, CONTRACTOR shall carefully study and compare the Contract Documents and check and verify pertinent figures therein and all applicable field measurements. CONTRACTOR shall promptly report in writing to OWNER any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy which CONTRACTOR may discover and shall obtain a written interpretation or clarification from OWNER before proceeding with any Work affected thereby; however, CONTRACTOR shall not be liable to OWNER for failure to report any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless CONTRACTOR knew or reasonably should have known thereof.
- B. Preliminary Schedules: Within ten days after the Effective Date of the Agreement (unless otherwise specified in the General Requirements), CONTRACTOR shall submit to OWNER for its timely review:
 - 1. a preliminary progress schedule indicating the times (numbers of days or dates) for starting and completing the various stages of the Work, including any Milestones specified in the Contract Documents;
 - 2. a preliminary schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample submittals which will list each required submittal and the times for submitting, reviewing, and processing such submittal; and
 - 3. a preliminary schedule of values for all of the Work which includes quantities and prices of items which when added together equal the Contract Price and subdivides the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during performance of the Work. Such prices will include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.
- C. Evidence of Insurance: Before any Work at the Site is started, CONTRACTOR and OWNER shall each deliver to the other, with copies to each additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance which either of them or any additional insured may reasonably request) which CONTRACTOR and OWNER respectively are required to purchase and maintain.
- D. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the notifying all property owners within and adjacent to the project twenty-for (24) hours prior to commencing construction operations. Said notice shall be in writing and in a form acceptable to the OWNER.
- E. Prior to the start of the project, the CONTRACTOR shall identify to the OWNER, any tree limbs which overly and interfere with the work. Said limbs are to be removed by the OWNER.

3.6 Preconstruction Conference

A. Within 20 days after the Contract Times start to run, but before any Work at the Site is started, a conference attended by CONTRACTOR, OWNER, and others as appropriate will be held to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the Work and to discuss the schedules, procedures, processing Applications for Payment, and maintaining required records.

3.7 Initial Acceptance of Schedules

- A. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, at least ten days before submission of the first Application for Payment a conference attended by CONTRACTOR, OWNER, and others as appropriate will be held to review for acceptability to
- OWNER as provided below the schedules submitted. CONTRACTOR shall have an additional ten days to make corrections and adjustments and to complete and resubmit the schedules. No progress payment shall be made to CONTRACTOR until acceptable schedules are submitted to OWNER.
 - 1. The progress schedule will be acceptable to OWNER if it provides an orderly progression of the Work to completion within any specified Milestones and the Contract Times. Such acceptance will not impose on OWNER responsibility for the progress schedule, for sequencing, scheduling, or progress of the Work nor interfere with or relieve CONTRACTOR from CONTRACTOR's full responsibility therefor.
 - 2. CONTRACTOR's schedule of values will be acceptable to OWNER as to form and substance if it provides a reasonable allocation of the Contract Price to component parts of the Work.

4 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: INTENT, AMENDING, REUSE

4.1 Intent

- A. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is called for by one is as binding as if called for by all.
- B. It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete Project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any labor, documentation, services, materials, or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the Contract Documents or from prevailing custom or trade usage as being required to produce the intended result will be provided whether or not specifically called for at no additional cost to OWNER.
- C. Clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents shall be issued by OWNER.

4.2 Reference Standards

A. Standards, Specifications, Codes, Laws, and Regulations

- 1. Reference to standards, specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the standard, specification, manual, code, or Laws or Regulations in effect at the time of opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the Agreement if there were no Bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents.
- 2. No provision of any such standard, specification, manual or code, or any instruction of a Supplier shall be effective to change the duties or responsibilities of OWNER or CONTRACTOR, or any of their subcontractors, consultants, agents, or employees from those set forth in the Contract Documents, nor shall any such provision or instruction be effective to assign to OWNER, or any of OWNER's Consultants, agents, or employees any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the Contract Documents.

4.3 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies

A. Reporting Discrepancies

1. If, during the performance of the Work, CONTRACTOR discovers any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy within the Contract Documents or between the Contract Documents and any provision of any Law or Regulation applicable to the performance of the Work or of any standard, specification, manual or code, or of any instruction of any Supplier, CONTRACTOR shall report it to OWNER in writing at once. CONTRACTOR shall not proceed with the Work affected thereby (except in an emergency) until an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents has been issued; provided, however, that CONTRACTOR shall not be liable to OWNER for failure to report any such conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy unless CONTRACTOR knew or reasonably should have known thereof.

B. Resolving Discrepancies

- 1. Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the provisions of the Contract Documents shall take precedence in resolving any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy between or the provisions of the Contract Documents and:
 - a. the provisions of any Laws or Regulations
 - b. the provisions of any standard, specification, applicable to the performance of the Work (unless such an interpretation of the provisions of the Contract Documents would result in violation of such Law or Regulation).

4.4 Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents

- A. The Contract Documents may be amended to provide for additions, deletions, and revisions in the Work or to modify the terms and conditions thereof in one or more of the following ways: (i) a Written Amendment; (ii) a Change Order; or (iii) a Work Change Directive.
- B. The requirements of the Contract Documents may be supplemented and minor variations and deviations in the Work may be authorized, by one or more of the following ways: (i) a Field Order; (ii) OWNER's approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample; or (iii) OWNER's written interpretation or clarification.

4.5 Reuse of Documents

- A. CONTRACTOR and any Subcontractor or Supplier or other individual or entity performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with OWNER:
 - 1. shall not have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of OWNER or OWNER's Consultant, including electronic media editions; and
 - 2. shall not reuse any of such Drawings, Specifications, manual, code, or instruction (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference in the Contract Documents); other documents, or copies thereof on extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of OWNER and specific written verification or adaption by OWNER. This prohibition will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work, or termination or completion of the Contract. Nothing herein shall preclude CONTRACTOR from retaining copies of the Contract Documents for record purposes.

5 - AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

5.1 Availability of Lands

- A. OWNER shall furnish the Site. OWNER shall notify CONTRACTOR of any encumbrances or restrictions not of general application but specifically related to use of the Site with which CONTRACTOR must comply in performing the Work. OWNER will obtain in a timely manner and pay for easements for permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities. If CONTRACTOR and OWNER are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of any delay in OWNER's furnishing the Site, CONTRACTOR may make a Claim.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.

C. The CONTRACTOR shall not, except after written consent from proper parties, enter or occupy with men, tools, materials or equipment, any privately- owned land except on easements provided herein.

5.2 Subsurface and Physical Conditions

- A. In the preparation of Drawings and Specifications, Owner relied upon the following report of explorations and tests of the subsurface conditions at the site: **GEOTECHNICAL INVESTIGATION PROVIDED BY HVJ**.
- B. Notice: If CONTRACTOR believes that any subsurface or physical condition at or contiguous to the Site that is uncovered or revealed either:
 - 1. is of such a nature as to establish that any "technical data" on which CONTRACTOR is entitled is materially inaccurate; or
 - 2. is of such a nature as to require a change in the Contract Documents; or
 - 3. differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents; or
 - 4. is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract Documents; then CONTRACTOR shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing the subsurface or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency), notify OWNER in writing about such condition.

 CONTRACTOR shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in connection therewith (except as aforesaid) until receipt of written order to do so.
- C. OWNER's Review: After receipt of written notice, OWNER will promptly review the pertinent condition, determine the necessity of OWNER's obtaining additional exploration or tests with respect thereto, and advise CONTRACTOR in writing of OWNER's findings and conclusions.
- D. Possible Price and Times Adjustments
 - 1. The Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, will be equitably adjusted to the extent that the existence of such differing subsurface or physical condition causes an increase or decrease in CONTRACTOR's cost of, or time required for performance of the Work.
 - 2. CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times if:
 - a. CONTRACTOR knew of the existence of such conditions at the time CONTRACTOR made a final commitment to OWNER in respect of Contract Price and Contract Times by the submission of a Bid or becoming bound under a negotiated contract; or

- b. the existence of such condition could reasonably have been discovered or revealed as a result of any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and contiguous areas required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents to be conducted by or for CONTRACTOR prior to CONTRACTOR's making such final commitment; or
- c. CONTRACTOR failed to give the written notice within the required time.
- 3. If OWNER and CONTRACTOR are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, a Claim may be made. However, OWNER and OWNER's Consultants shall not be liable to CONTRACTOR for any claims, costs, losses, or damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained by CONTRACTOR on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.

5.4 Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site

- A. CONTRACTOR shall not be responsible for any Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site which was not shown or indicated in Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be within the scope of the Work. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for a Hazardous Environmental Condition created with any materials brought to the Site by CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone else for whom CONTRACTOR is responsible.
- B. If CONTRACTOR encounters a Hazardous Environmental Condition or if CONTRACTOR or anyone for whom CONTRACTOR is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition, CONTRACTOR shall immediately: (i) secure or otherwise isolate such condition; (ii) stop all Work in connection with such condition and in any area affected thereby (except in an emergency); and (iii) notify OWNER (and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing). OWNER shall promptly consult with OWNER'S Consultants concerning the necessity for OWNER to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective action, if any.
- C. CONTRACTOR shall not be required to resume Work in connection with such condition or in any affected area until after OWNER has obtained any required permits related thereto and delivered to CONTRACTOR written notice: (i) specifying that such condition and any affected area is or has been rendered safe for the resumption of Work; or (ii) specifying any special conditions under which such Work may be resumed safely. If OWNER and CONTRACTOR cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of such Work stoppage or such special conditions under which Work is agreed to be resumed by CONTRACTOR, either party may make a Claim.

- D. If after receipt of such written notice CONTRACTOR does not agree to resume such Work based on a reasonable belief it is unsafe, or does not agree to resume such Work under such special conditions, then OWNER may order the portion of the Work that is in the area affected by such condition to be deleted from the Work. If OWNER and CONTRACTOR cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times as a result of deleting such portion of the Work, then either party may make a Claim. OWNER may have such deleted portion of the Work performed by OWNER's own forces or others.
- E. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, OWNER shall indemnify and hold harmless CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, OWNER's Consultants and the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, other consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that such Hazardous Environmental Condition: (i) was not shown or indicated in the Drawings or Specifications or identified in the Contract Documents to be included within the scope of the Work; and (ii) was not created by CONTRACTOR or by anyone for whom CONTRACTOR is responsible. Nothing shall obligate OWNER to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.
- F. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless OWNER, OWNER's Consultants, and the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, other consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition created by CONTRACTOR or by anyone for whom CONTRACTOR is responsible. Nothing shall obligate CONTRACTOR to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.

5.5 Damage to Existing Park Features

- A. The stage, playground and existing sidewalks adjacent to the work area are in good to excellent condition prior to the start of the project.
- B. Any scars, nicks, gasoline, oil, etc., or other defacement or damage to the existing streets, curbs, or sidewalks will be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to repair. Before beginning the job, the CONTRACTOR may point out and note to the inspector any specific areas that are already damaged. Thereafter, the CONTRACTOR will not be held responsible for repairs to these areas.

6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

6.1 Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds

- A. CONTRACTOR shall furnish performance and payment Bonds, each in an amount at least equal to the Contract Price as security for the faithful performance and payment of all CONTRACTOR's obligations under the Contract Documents. These Bonds shall remain in effect at least until one year after the date when final payment becomes due, except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations or by the Contract Documents. CONTRACTOR shall also furnish such other Bonds as are required by the Contract Documents.
- B. All Bonds shall be in the form prescribed by the Contract Documents except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations and shall be executed by such sureties as are named in the current list of "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 570 (amended) by the Financial Management Service, Surety Bond Branch, U.S. Department of the Treasury. All Bonds signed by an agent must be accompanied by a certified copy of such agent's authority to act.
- C. If the surety on any Bond furnished by CONTRACTOR is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent or its right to do business is terminated in any state where any part of the Project is located or it ceases to meet the requirements, CONTRACTOR shall within 20 days thereafter substitute another Bond and surety, both of which shall comply with the requirements.

6.2 Licensed Sureties and Insurers

A. All Bonds and insurance required by the Contract Documents to be purchased and maintained by OWNER or CONTRACTOR shall be obtained from surety or insurance companies that are duly licensed or authorized in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located to issue Bonds or insurance policies for the limits and coverages so required. Such surety and insurance companies shall also meet such additional requirements and qualifications as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

6.3 Certificates of Insurance

A. CONTRACTOR shall deliver to OWNER, with copies to each additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance requested by OWNER or any other additional insured) which CONTRACTOR is required to purchase and maintain. OWNER shall deliver to CONTRACTOR, with copies to each additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions, certificates of insurance (and other evidence of insurance requested by CONTRACTOR or any other additional insured) which OWNER is required to purchase and maintain.

6.4 CONTRACTOR's Liability Insurance

- A. CONTRACTOR shall purchase and maintain such liability and other insurance as is appropriate for the Work being performed and as will provide protection from claims set forth below which may arise out of or result from CONTRACTOR's performance of the Work and CONTRACTOR's other obligations under the Contract Documents, whether it is to be performed by CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable:
 - 1. claims under workers' compensation, disability benefits, and other similar employee benefit acts;
 - 2. claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of CONTRACTOR's employees;
 - 3. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than CONTRACTOR's employees;
 - 4. claims for damages insured by reasonably available personal injury liability coverage which are sustained: (i) by any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such person by CONTRACTOR, or (ii) by any other person for any other reason;
 - 5. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible property wherever located, including loss of use resulting therefrom; and
 - 6. claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any motor vehicle.
- B. The policies of insurance so required to be purchased and maintained shall:
 - 1. with respect to insurance required, include as additional insured (subject to any customary exclusion in respect of professional liability) OWNER, OWNER's Consultants, and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, all of whom shall be listed as additional insured, and include coverage for the respective officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and subcontractors of each and any of all such additional insured, and the insurance afforded to these additional insured shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby;
 - 2. include at least the specific coverages and be written for not less than the limits of liability provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws or Regulations, whichever is greater;
 - 3. include completed operations insurance;

- 4. include contractual liability insurance covering CONTRACTOR's indemnity obligations;
- 5. contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, materially changed or renewal refused until at least thirty days prior written notice has been given to OWNER and CONTRACTOR and to each other additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued (and the certificates of insurance furnished by the CONTRACTOR will so provide);
- 6. remain in effect at least until final payment and at all times thereafter when CONTRACTOR may be correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work in accordance with; and
- 7. with respect to completed operations insurance, and any insurance coverage written on a claims-made basis, remain in effect for at least two years after final payment (and CONTRACTOR shall furnish OWNER and each other additional insured identified in the Supplementary Conditions, to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued, evidence satisfactory to OWNER and any such additional insured of continuation of such insurance at final payment and one year thereafter).

6.5 OWNER's Liability Insurance

A. In addition to the insurance required to be provided by CONTRACTOR, OWNER, at OWNER's option, may purchase and maintain at OWNER's expense OWNER's own liability insurance as will protect OWNER against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract Documents.

6.6 Property Insurance

- A. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, OWNER shall purchase and maintain property insurance upon the Work at the Site in the amount of the full replacement cost thereof (subject to such deductible amounts as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws and Regulations). This insurance shall:
 - 1. include the interests of OWNER, CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, OWNER's Consultants, and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, and the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, each of whom is deemed to have an insurable interest and shall be listed as an additional insured;
 - 2. be written on a Builder's Risk "all-risk" or open peril or special causes of loss policy form that shall at least include insurance for physical loss or damage to the Work, temporary buildings, false work, and materials and equipment in transit, and shall insure against at least the following perils or causes of loss: fire, lightning, extended coverage, theft, vandalism and malicious mischief, earthquake, collapse, debris removal, demolition occasioned by enforcement of Laws and Regulations, water damage, and such other perils or causes of loss as may be specifically required by the Supplementary Conditions;

- 3. include expenses incurred in the repair or replacement of any insured property (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers and architects);
- 4. cover materials and equipment stored at the Site or at another location that was agreed to in writing by OWNER prior to being incorporated in the Work, provided that such materials and equipment have been included in an Application for Payment recommended by OWNER;
- 5. allow for partial utilization of the Work by OWNER;
- 6. include testing and startup; and be maintained in effect until final payment is made unless otherwise agreed to in writing by OWNER and CONTRACTOR with 30 days written notice to each other additional insured to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued.
- B. OWNER shall purchase and maintain such boiler and machinery insurance or additional property insurance as may be required by the Supplementary Conditions or Laws and Regulations which will include the interests of OWNER, CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, OWNER's Consultants, and any other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions, each of whom is deemed to have an insurable interest and shall be listed as an insured or additional insured.
- C. All the policies of insurance (and the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be purchased and maintained will contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled or materially changed or renewal refused until at least 30 days prior written notice has been given to OWNER and CONTRACTOR and to each other additional insured to whom a certificate of insurance has been issued and will contain waiver provisions.
- D. OWNER shall not be responsible for purchasing and maintaining any property insurance specified to protect the interests of CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, or others in the Work to the extent of any deductible amounts that are identified in the Supplementary Conditions. The risk of loss within such identified deductible amount will be borne by CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, or others suffering any such loss, and if any of them wishes property insurance coverage within the limits of such amounts, each may purchase and maintain it at the purchaser's own expense.
- E. If CONTRACTOR requests in writing that other special insurance be included in the property insurance policies provided, OWNER shall, if possible, include such insurance, and the cost thereof will be charged to CONTRACTOR by appropriate Change Order or Written Amendment. Prior to commencement of the Work at the Site, OWNER shall in writing advise CONTRACTOR whether or not such other insurance has been procured by OWNER.

6.7 Waiver of Rights

- OWNER and CONTRACTOR intend that all policies purchased will protect OWNER, A. CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, OWNER's Consultants, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions to be listed as insured or additional insured (and the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them) in such policies and will provide primary coverage for all losses and damages caused by the perils or causes of loss covered thereby. All such policies shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have no rights of recovery against any of the insured or additional insured thereunder. OWNER and CONTRACTOR waive all rights against each other and their respective officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work; and, in addition, waive all such rights against Subcontractors, OWNER's Consultants, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions to be listed as insured or additional insured (and the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them) under such policies for losses and damages so caused. None of the above waivers shall extend to the rights that any party making such waiver may have to the proceeds of insurance held by OWNER as trustee or otherwise payable under any policy so issued.
- B. OWNER waives all rights against CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, OWNER's Consultants, and the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them for:
 - 1. loss due to business interruption, loss of use, or other consequential loss extending beyond direct physical loss or damage to OWNER's property or the Work caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other peril whether or not insured by OWNER; and
 - 2. loss or damage to the completed Project or part thereof caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other insured peril or cause of loss covered by any property insurance maintained on the completed Project or part thereof by OWNER during partial utilization, after Substantial Completion, or after final payment.
- C. Any insurance policy maintained by OWNER covering any loss, damage or consequential loss shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any such loss, damage, or consequential loss, the insurers will have no rights of recovery against CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, or OWNER's Consultants and the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them.

6.8 Receipt and Application of Insurance Proceeds

- A. Any insured loss under the policies of insurance required will be adjusted with OWNER and made payable to OWNER as fiduciary for the insured, as their interests may appear, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause. OWNER shall deposit in a separate account any money so received and shall distribute it in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach. If no other special agreement is reached, the damaged Work shall be repaired or replaced, the moneys so received applied on account thereof, and the Work and the cost thereof covered by an appropriate Change Order or Written Amendment.
- B. OWNER as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle any loss with the insurers unless one of the parties in interest shall object in writing within 15 days after the occurrence of loss to OWNER's exercise of this power. If such objection be made, OWNER as fiduciary shall make settlement with the insurers in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach. If no such agreement among the parties in interest is reached, OWNER as fiduciary shall adjust and settle the loss with the insurers and, if required in writing by any party in interest, OWNER as fiduciary shall give bond for the proper performance of such duties.

6.9 Acceptance of Bonds and Insurance; Option to Replace

A. If either OWNER or CONTRACTOR has any objection to the coverage afforded by or other provisions of the Bonds or insurance required to be purchased and maintained by the other party on the basis of non-conformance with the Contract Documents, the objecting party shall so notify the other party in writing within 10 days after receipt of the certificates (or other evidence requested). OWNER and CONTRACTOR shall each provide to the other such additional information in respect of insurance provided as the other may reasonably request. If either party does not purchase or maintain all of the Bonds and insurance required of such party by the Contract Documents, such party shall notify the other party in writing of such failure to purchase prior to the start of the Work, or of such failure to maintain prior to any change in the required coverage. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy, the other party may elect to obtain equivalent Bonds or insurance to protect such other party's interests at the expense of the party who was required to provide such coverage, and a Change Order shall be issued to adjust the Contract Price accordingly.

6.10 Partial Utilization, Acknowledgment of Property Insurer

A. If OWNER finds it necessary to occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, no such use or occupancy shall commence before the insurers providing the property insurance have acknowledged notice thereof and in writing effected any changes in coverage necessitated thereby. The insurers providing the property insurance shall consent by endorsement on the policy or policies, but the property insurance shall not be canceled or permitted to lapse on account of any such partial use or occupancy.

6.11 Warranty

The Contractor shall warrant the work performed against defect in materials and workmanship for a period of one year after acceptance by the Owner. Warranty work will be performed by the Contractor within a reasonable time of notice given by the Owner. Owner reserves the right to make repairs at the Contractor's expense upon the failure of the Contractor to respond promptly. Repairs under the warranty will carry an additional 90-day warranty period. The Warranty period shall commence at the time the City has made final acceptance of the work done by the Contractor. The City will assume responsibilities for damage to the facility caused by misuse and vandalism after final acceptance.

7 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

7.1 Supervision and Superintendence

- A. CONTRACTOR shall supervise, inspect, and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, but CONTRACTOR shall not be responsible for the negligence of OWNER in the design or specification of a specific means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction which is shown or indicated in and expressly required by the Contract Documents. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to see that the completed Work complies accurately with the Contract Documents.
- B. At all times during the progress of the Work, CONTRACTOR shall assign a competent resident superintendent thereto who shall not be replaced without written notice to OWNER except under extraordinary circumstances. The superintendent will be CONTRACTOR's representative at the Site and shall have authority to act on behalf of CONTRACTOR. All communications given to or received from the superintendent shall be binding on CONTRACTOR.

7.2 Labor; Working Hours

- A. CONTRACTOR shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey, lay out, and construct the Work as required by the Contract Documents. CONTRACTOR shall at all times maintain good discipline and order at the Site.
- B. Except as otherwise required for the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all Work at the Site shall be performed during regular working hours, and CONTRACTOR will not permit overtime work or the performance of Work on Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday without OWNER's written consent (which will not be unreasonably withheld) given after prior written notice to OWNER.

7.3 Services, Materials, and Equipment

- A. Unless otherwise specified in the General Requirements, CONTRACTOR shall provide and assume full responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the performance, testing, start-up, and completion of the Work.
- B. All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work shall be as specified or, if not specified, shall be of good quality and new, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. All warranties and guarantees specifically called for by the Specifications shall expressly run to the benefit of OWNER. If required by OWNER, CONTRACTOR shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the source, kind, and quality of materials and equipment. All materials and equipment shall be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable Supplier, except as otherwise may be provided in the Contract Documents.

7.4 Progress Schedule

- A. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the progress schedule established as it may be adjusted from time to time as provided below.
 - 1. CONTRACTOR shall submit to OWNER for acceptance proposed adjustments in the progress schedule that will not result in changing the Contract Times (or Milestones). Such adjustments will conform generally to the progress schedule then in effect and additionally will comply with any provisions of the General Requirements applicable thereto.
 - 2. Proposed adjustments in the progress schedule that will change the Contract Times (or Milestones) shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements. Such adjustments may only be made by a Change Order or Written Amendment.

7.5 Substitutes and "Or-Equals"

A. Whenever an item of material or equipment is specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the specification or description is intended to establish the type, function, appearance, and quality required. Unless the specification or description contains or is followed by words reading that no like, equivalent, or "or-equal" item or no substitution is permitted, other items of material or equipment or material or equipment of other Suppliers may be submitted to OWNER for review under the circumstances described below.

- 1. "Or-Equal" Items: If in OWNER's sole discretion an item of material or equipment proposed by CONTRACTOR is functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so that no change in related Work will be required, it may be considered by OWNER as an "or-equal" item, in which case review and approval of the proposed item may, in OWNER's sole discretion, be accomplished without compliance with some or all of the requirements for approval of proposed substitute items. A proposed item of material or equipment will be considered functionally equal to an item so named if:
 - a. in the exercise of reasonable judgment OWNER determines that: (i) it is at least equal in quality, durability, appearance, strength, and design characteristics; (ii) it will reliably perform at least equally well the function imposed by the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole, and;
 - b. CONTRACTOR certifies that: (i) there is no increase in cost to the OWNER; and (ii) it will conform substantially, even with deviations, to the detailed requirements of the item named in the Contract Documents.

2. Substitute Items

- a. If in OWNER's sole discretion an item of material or equipment proposed by CONTRACTOR does not qualify as an "or-equal" item, it will be considered a proposed substitute item.
- b. CONTRACTOR shall submit sufficient information as provided below to allow OWNER to determine that the item of material or equipment proposed is essentially equivalent to that named and an acceptable substitute therefor. Requests for review of proposed substitute items of material or equipment will not be accepted by OWNER from anyone other than CONTRACTOR.
- c. The procedure for review by OWNER will be as set forth as supplemented in the General Requirements and as OWNER may decide is appropriate under the circumstances.
- d. CONTRACTOR shall first make written application to OWNER for review of a proposed substitute item of material or equipment that CONTRACTOR seeks to furnish or use. The application shall certify that the proposed substitute item will perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design, be similar in substance to that specified, and be suited to the same use as that specified. The application will state the extent, if any, to which the use of the proposed substitute item will prejudice CONTRACTOR's achievement of Substantial Completion on time, whether or not use of the proposed substitute item in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with OWNER for work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute item and whether or not incorporation or use of the proposed substitute item in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty. All variations of the proposed substitute item from that specified

will be identified in the application, and available engineering, sales, maintenance, repair, and replacement services will be indicated. The application will also contain an itemized estimate of all costs or credits that will result directly or indirectly from use of such substitute item, including costs of redesign and claims of other contractors affected by any resulting change, all of which will be considered by OWNER in evaluating the proposed substitute item. OWNER may require CONTRACTOR to furnish additional data about the proposed substitute item.

- B. Substitute Construction Methods or Procedures: If a specific means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction is shown or indicated in and expressly required by the Contract Documents, CONTRACTOR may furnish or utilize a substitute means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction approved by OWNER. CONTRACTOR shall submit sufficient information to allow OWNER, in OWNER's sole discretion, to determine that the substitute proposed is equivalent to that expressly called for by the Contract Documents.
- C. Owner's Evaluation: OWNER will be allowed a reasonable time within which to evaluate each proposal or submittal made. OWNER will be the sole judge of acceptability. No "or-equal" or substitute will be ordered, installed or utilized until OWNER's review is complete, which will be evidenced by either a Change Order for a substitute or an approved Shop Drawing for an "or equal." OWNER will advise CONTRACTOR in writing of any negative determination.
- D. Special Guarantee: OWNER may require CONTRACTOR to furnish at CONTRACTOR's expense a special performance guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.
- E. CONTRACTOR's Expense: CONTRACTOR shall provide all data in support of any proposed substitute or "or-equal" at CONTRACTOR's expense.
- 7.6 Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others
 - A. CONTRACTOR shall not employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity (including those acceptable to OWNER), whether initially or as a replacement, against whom OWNER may have reasonable objection. CONTRACTOR shall not be required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity to furnish or perform any of the Work against whom CONTRACTOR has reasonable objection.
 - B. If the Supplementary Conditions require the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities to be submitted to OWNER in advance for acceptance by OWNER by a specified date prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement, and if CONTRACTOR has submitted a list thereof in accordance with the Supplementary Conditions, OWNER's acceptance (either in writing or by failing to make written objection thereto by the date indicated for acceptance or objection in the Bidding Documents or the Contract Documents) of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity so identified may be revoked on the basis of reasonable objection after due investigation. CONTRACTOR shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected

Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, and the Contract Price will be adjusted by the difference in the cost occasioned by such replacement, and an appropriate Change Order will be issued, or Written Amendment signed. No acceptance by OWNER of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, whether initially or as a replacement, shall constitute a waiver of any right of OWNER to reject defective Work.

- C. CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible to OWNER for all acts and omissions of the Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work just as CONTRACTOR is responsible for CONTRACTOR's own acts and omissions. Nothing in the Contract Documents shall create for the benefit of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity any contractual relationship between OWNER and any such Subcontractor, Supplier or other individual or entity, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of OWNER to pay or to see to the payment of any moneys due any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity except as may otherwise be required by Laws and Regulations.
- D. CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating the Work of Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work under a direct or indirect contract with CONTRACTOR.
- E. CONTRACTOR shall require all Subcontractors, Suppliers, and such other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work to communicate with OWNER through CONTRACTOR.
- F. The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not control CONTRACTOR in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating the Work to be performed by any specific trade.
- G. All Work performed for CONTRACTOR by a Subcontractor or Supplier will be pursuant to an appropriate agreement between CONTRACTOR and the Subcontractor or Supplier which specifically binds the Subcontractor or Supplier to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of OWNER. Whenever any such agreement is with a Subcontractor or Supplier who is listed as an additional insured on the property insurance, the agreement between the CONTRACTOR and the Subcontractor or Supplier will contain provisions whereby the Subcontractor or Supplier waives all rights against OWNER, CONTRACTOR, OWNER's Consultants, and all other individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions to be listed as insureds or additional insureds (and the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them) for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work. If the insurers on any such policies require separate waiver forms to be signed by any Subcontractor or Supplier, CONTRACTOR will obtain the same.

7.7 Laws and Regulations

- A. CONTRACTOR shall give all notices and comply with all Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws and Regulations, OWNER shall not be responsible for monitoring CONTRACTOR's compliance with any Laws or Regulations.
- B. If CONTRACTOR performs any Work knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or Regulations, CONTRACTOR shall bear all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such Work; however, it shall not be CONTRACTOR's primary responsibility to make certain that the Specifications and Drawings are in accordance with Laws and Regulations, but this shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of CONTRACTOR's obligations.
- C. Changes in Laws or Regulations not known at the time of opening of Bids (or, on the Effective Date of the Agreement if there were no Bids) having an effect on the cost or time of performance of the Work may be the subject of an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times. If OWNER and CONTRACTOR are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any such adjustment, a Claim may be made.

7.8 Taxes

A. CONTRACTOR shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes required to be paid by CONTRACTOR in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are applicable during the performance of the Work.

7.9 Use of Site and Other Areas

A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas

- 1. CONTRACTOR shall confine construction equipment, the storage of materials and equipment, and the operations of workers to the Site and other areas permitted by Laws and Regulations and shall not unreasonably encumber the Site and other areas with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility for any damage to any such land or area, or to the owner or occupant thereof, or of any adjacent land or areas resulting from the performance of the Work.
- 2. Should any claim be made by any such owner or occupant because of the performance of the Work, CONTRACTOR shall promptly settle with such other party by negotiation or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law.

- 3. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless OWNER,OWNER's Consultant, and the officers, directors, partners, employees, agents, and other consultants of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought by any such owner or occupant against OWNER, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused by or based upon CONTRACTOR's performance of the Work.
- B. Removal of Debris During Performance of the Work: During the progress of the Work CONTRACTOR shall keep the Site and other areas free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and other debris. Removal and disposal of such waste materials, rubbish, and other debris shall conform to applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Cleaning: Prior to Substantial Completion of the Work CONTRACTOR shall clean the Site and make it ready for utilization by OWNER. At the completion of the Work CONTRACTOR shall remove from the Site all tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery, and surplus materials and shall restore to original condition all property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.

7.10 Record Documents

A. CONTRACTOR shall maintain in a safe place at the Site one record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Written Amendments, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications in good order and annotated to show changes made during construction. These record documents together with all approved Samples and a counterpart of all approved Shop Drawings will be available to OWNER for reference. Upon completion of the Work, these record documents, Samples, and Shop Drawings will be delivered to OWNER.

7.11 Safety and Protection

- A. CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to:
 - 1. all persons on the Site or who may be affected by the Work;
 - 2. all the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site; and
 - 3. other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, utilities, and Underground Facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.

В. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations relating to the safety of persons or property, or to the protection of persons or property from damage, injury, or loss; and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection. CONTRACTOR shall notify owners of adjacent property and of Underground Facilities and other utility owners when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of their property. All damage, injury, or loss to any property caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, Supplier, or any other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by CONTRACTOR (except damage or loss attributable to the fault of Drawings or Specifications or to the acts or omissions of OWNER or OWNER's Consultant, or anyone employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of CONTRACTOR or any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them). CONTRACTOR's duties and responsibilities for safety and for protection of the Work shall continue until such time as all the Work is completed and OWNER has issued a notice to OWNER and CONTRACTOR that the Work is acceptable (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with Substantial Completion).

7.12 Safety Representative

A. CONTRACTOR shall designate a qualified and experienced safety representative at the Site whose duties and responsibilities shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervising of safety precautions and programs.

7.13 Hazard Communication Programs

A. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of material safety data sheets or other hazard communication information required to be made available to or exchanged between or among employers at the Site in accordance with Laws or Regulations.

7.14 Emergencies

A. In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, CONTRACTOR is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. CONTRACTOR shall give OWNER prompt written notice if CONTRACTOR believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby or are required as a result thereof. If OWNER determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of the action taken by CONTRACTOR in response to such an emergency, a Work Change Directive or Change Order will be issued.

7.15 Continuing the Work

A. CONTRACTOR shall carry on the Work and adhere to the progress schedule during all disputes or disagreements with OWNER. No work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements, except as permitted or as OWNER and CONTRACTOR may otherwise agree in writing.

7.16 CONTRACTOR's General Warranty and Guarantee

- A. CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees to OWNER, and OWNER's Consultants that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be defective for a 12-month period beginning on the date of the final payment. CONTRACTOR's warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or damage caused by:
 - 1. abuse, modification, or improper maintenance or operation by persons other than CONTRACTOR, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other individual or entity for whom CONTRACTOR is responsible; or
 - 2. normal wear and tear under normal usage.
- B. CONTRACTOR's obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of CONTRACTOR's obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents:
 - 1. observations by OWNER;
 - 2. recommendation by OWNER or payment by OWNER of any progress or final payment;
 - 3. the issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion by OWNER or any payment related thereto by OWNER;
 - 4. use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by OWNER;
 - 5. any acceptance by OWNER or any failure to do so;
 - 6. any review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal or the issuance of a Notice of Acceptability by OWNER:
 - 7. any inspection, test, or approval by others; or
 - 8. any correction of defective Work by OWNER.

7.17 Indemnification

To the fullest extent permitted by law the contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the owner, and agents and employees of them from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the work, provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the contractor, a subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person.

In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this section, by an employee of the contractor, a subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the contractor or a subcontractor under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

8 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 8.1 Communications to Contractor
 - A. Except as otherwise provided in these General Conditions, OWNER shall issue all communications to CONTRACTOR directly.
- 8.2 Furnish Data
 - A. OWNER shall promptly furnish the data required of OWNER under the Contract Documents.
- 8.3 Pay Promptly When Due
 - A. OWNER shall make payments to CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days of receipt of an application for payment.
- 8.4 Insurance
 - A. OWNER's responsibilities, if any, in respect to purchasing and maintaining liability and property insurance.
- 8.5 Change Orders
 - A. OWNER is obligated to execute Change Orders.

8.6 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals

A. OWNER's responsibility in respect to certain inspections, tests, and approvals.

8.7 Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. OWNER's responsibility in respect to an undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition.

8.8 Evidence of Financial Arrangements

A. If and to the extent OWNER has agreed to furnish CONTRACTOR reasonable evidence that financial arrangements have been made to satisfy OWNER's obligations under the Contract Documents, OWNER's responsibility in respect thereof will be as set forth in the Supplementary Conditions.

9 - OWNER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION

9.1 Visits to Site

- A. OWNER will make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction as OWNER deems necessary in order to observe the progress that has been made and the quality of the various aspects of CONTRACTOR's executed Work. based on information obtained during such visits and observations, OWNER will determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. OWNER will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous inspections on the Site to check the quality or quantity of the Work. OWNER's efforts will be directed toward providing a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform generally to the Contract Documents. On the basis of such visits and observations, OWNER will keep informed of the progress of the Work and will endeavor to guard themselves against defective Work.
- B. OWNER's visits and observations are subject to all the limitations on OWNER's authority and responsibility, and particularly, but without limitation, during or as a result of OWNER's visits or observations of CONTRACTOR's Work OWNER will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for CONTRACTOR's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of CONTRACTOR to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work.

9.2 Project Representative

A. OWNER will furnish a Project Manager to assist OWNER in providing more extensive observation of the Work. The responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of any such Project Manager and assistants will be in the Supplementary Conditions. If OWNER designates another representative or agent to represent OWNER at the Site who is not OWNER's Consultant, agent or employee, the

responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of such other individual or entity will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

9.3 Clarifications and Interpretations

A. OWNER will issue with reasonable promptness such written clarifications or interpretations of the requirements of the Contract Documents as OWNER may determine necessary, which shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable from the Contract Documents. Such written clarifications and interpretations will be binding on OWNER and CONTRACTOR. If OWNER and CONTRACTOR are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, that should be allowed as a result of a written clarification or interpretation, a Claim may be made.

9.4 Authorized Variations in Work

A. OWNER may authorize minor variations in the Work from the requirements of the Contract Documents which do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times and are compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. These may be accomplished by a Field Order and will be binding on OWNER and also on CONTRACTOR, who shall perform the Work involved promptly. If OWNER and CONTRACTOR are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of a Field Order, a Claim may be made.

9.5 Rejecting Defective Work

A. OWNER will have authority to disapprove or reject Work which OWNER believes to be defective, or that OWNER believes will not produce a completed Project that conforms to the Contract Documents or that will prejudice the integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. OWNER will also have authority to require special inspection or testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.

9.6 Determinations for Unit Price Work

A. OWNER will determine the approximate quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by CONTRACTOR. OWNER will review with CONTRACTOR the OWNER's preliminary determinations on such matter. It will be CONTRACTOR's responsibility to visit the sites and become familiar with the existing conditions and the scope of the project work; verify quantities and become familiar with the surrounding conditions that may affect the cost.

9.7 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work

- A. OWNER will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents and judge of the acceptability of the Work thereunder. Claims, disputes and other matters relating to the acceptability of the Work, the quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work, the interpretation of the requirements of the Contract Documents pertaining to the performance of the Work, and Claims seeking changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times will be referred initially to OWNER in writing, a request for a formal decision.
- B. When functioning as interpreter and judge, OWNER or OWNER's Consultant will not be liable in connection with any interpretation or decision rendered in good faith in such capacity. The rendering of a decision by OWNER with respect to any such Claim, dispute, or other matter (except any which have been waived by the making or acceptance of final payment) will be a condition precedent to any exercise by OWNER or CONTRACTOR of such rights or remedies as either may otherwise have under the Contract Documents or by Laws or Regulations in respect of any such Claim, dispute, or other matter.

9.8 Limitations on OWNER's Authority and Responsibilities

- A. Neither OWNER's authority or responsibility under this or under any other provision of the Contract Documents nor any decision made by OWNER in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such authority or responsibility or the undertaking, exercise, or performance of any authority or responsibility by OWNER shall create, impose, or give rise to any duty in contract, tort, or otherwise owed by OWNER to CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee or agent of any of them.
- B. OWNER will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for CONTRACTOR's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of CONTRACTOR to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. OWNER will not be responsible for CONTRACTOR's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. OWNER will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or of any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any other individual or entity performing any of the Work.
- D. OWNER's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation and all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, Bonds, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and other documentation required to be delivered will only be to determine generally that their content complies with the requirements of, and in the case of certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals that the results certified indicate compliance with, the Contract Documents.
- E. The limitations upon authority and responsibility set forth shall also apply to OWNER's Consultants, Resident Project Representative, and assistants.

10 - CHANGES IN THE WORK; CLAIMS

10.1 Authorized Changes in the Work

- A. Without invalidating the Agreement and without notice to any surety, OWNER may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work by a Written Amendment, a Change Order, or a Work Change Directive. Upon receipt of any such document, CONTRACTOR shall promptly proceed with the Work involved which will be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents (except as otherwise specifically provided).
- B. If OWNER and CONTRACTOR are unable to agree on entitlement to, or on the amount or extent, if any, of an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, that should be allowed as a result of a Work Change Directive, a Claim may be made.

10.2 Unauthorized Changes in the Work

A. CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents as amended, modified, or supplemented, except in the case of an emergency or in the case of uncovering Work.

10.3 Execution of Change Orders

- A. OWNER and CONTRACTOR shall execute appropriate Change Orders (or Written Amendments) covering:
 - 1. changes in the Work which are: (i) ordered by OWNER, (ii) required because of acceptance of defective Work or OWNER's correction of defective Work, or (iii) agreed to by the parties;
 - 2. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which are agreed to by the parties, including any undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with a Work Change Directive; and
 - 3. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which embody the substance of any written decision rendered by OWNER; provided that, in lieu of executing any such Change Order, an appeal may be taken from any such decision in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents and applicable Laws and Regulations, but during any such appeal, CONTRACTOR shall carry on the Work and adhere to the progress schedule.

10.4 Notification to Surety

A. If notice of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Times) is required by the provisions of any Bond to be given to a surety, the giving of any such notice will be CONTRACTOR's responsibility. The amount of each applicable Bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any such change.

10.5 Claims and Disputes

- A. Notice: Written notice stating the general nature of each Claim, dispute, or other matter shall be delivered by the claimant to OWNER's Consultant and the other party to the Contract promptly (but in no event later than 30 days) after the start of the event giving rise thereto. Notice of the amount or extent of the Claim, dispute, or other matter with supporting data shall be delivered to the OWNER's Consultant and the other party to the Contract within 60 days after the start of such event (unless OWNER's Consultant allows additional time for claimant to submit additional or more accurate data in support of such Claim, dispute, or other matter). A Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions. A Claim for an adjustment in Contract Time shall be prepared in accordance with the provisions. Each Claim shall be accompanied by claimant's written statement that the adjustment claimed is the entire adjustment to which the claimant believes it is entitled as a result of said event. The opposing party shall submit any response to OWNER's Consultant and the claimant within 30 days after receipt of the claimant's last submittal (unless OWNER allows additional time).
- B. OWNER'S Consultant's decision: OWNER'S Consultant will render a formal decision within 30 days after receipt of the last submittal of the claimant or the last submittal of the opposing party, if any. OWNER'S Consultant's written decision on such claim, dispute or other matter will be final and binding on the OWNER and CONTRACTOR unless:
 - 1. An appeal from OWNER'S decision is taken within the time limits and in accordance with the dispute resolution procedures, a written notice of intent to appeal from OWNER'S written decision is delivered by OWNER or CONTRACTOR to the other and to OWNER'S Consultant within 30 days after the date of such decision, and a formal proceeding is instituted by the appealing party in a forum of competent jurisdiction within 60 days after the date of such decision or within 60 days after Substantial Completion, whichever is later (unless otherwise agreed in writing by OWNER and CONTRACTOR), to exercise such rights or remedies as the appealing party may have with respect to such Claim, dispute, or other matter in accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. If Owner's Consultant does not render a formal decision in writing within the time stated, a decision denying the Claim in its entirety shall be deemed to have been issued 31 days after receipt of the last submittal of the claimant or the last submittal of the opposing party, if any.
- D. No Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times (or Milestones) will be valid if not submitted.

11- COST OF THE WORK; CASH ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK

11.1 Cost of the Work

- A. Costs Included: The term Cost of the Work means the sum of all costs necessarily incurred and paid by CONTRACTOR in the proper performance of the Work. When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order or when a Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, the costs to be reimbursed to CONTRACTOR will be only those additional or incremental costs required because of the change in the Work or because of the event giving rise to the Claim. Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by OWNER, such costs shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Project, shall include only the following items, and shall not include any of the costs itemized.
 - 1. Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of CONTRACTOR in the performance of the Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by OWNER and CONTRACTOR. Such employees shall include without limitation superintendents, foremen, and other personnel employed full time at the Site. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits, which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise, and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, vacation and holiday pay applicable thereto. The expenses of performing Work outside of regular working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent authorized by OWNER.
 - 2. Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers' field services required in connection therewith. All cash discounts shall accrue to CONTRACTOR unless OWNER deposits funds with CONTRACTOR with which to make payments, in which case the cash discounts shall accrue to OWNER. All trade discounts, rebates and refunds and returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to OWNER, and CONTRACTOR shall make provisions so that they may be obtained.
 - 3. Payments made by CONTRACTOR to Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required by OWNER, CONTRACTOR shall obtain competitive bids from subcontractors acceptable to OWNER and CONTRACTOR and shall deliver such bids to OWNER, who will then determine which bids, if any, will be acceptable. If any subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee, the Subcontractor's Cost of the Work and fee shall be determined in the same manner as CONTRACTOR's Cost of the Work and fee as provided.

- B. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the Work shall not include any of the following items:
 - 1. Payroll costs and other compensation of CONTRACTOR's officers, executives, principals (of partnerships and sole proprietorships), general managers, engineers, architects, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks, and other personnel employed by CONTRACTOR, whether at the Site or in CONTRACTOR's principal or branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon schedule of job classifications, all of which are to be considered administrative costs covered by the CONTRACTOR's fee.
 - 2. Expenses of CONTRACTOR's principal and branch offices other than CONTRACTOR's office at the Site.
 - 3. Any part of CONTRACTOR's capital expenses, including interest on CONTRACTOR's capital employed for the Work and charges against CONTRACTOR for delinquent payments.
 - 4. Costs due to the negligence of CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not limited to, the correction of defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.
 - 5. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly.
- C. CONTRACTOR's Fee: When all the Work is performed on the basis of cost-plus, CONTRACTOR's fee shall be determined as set forth in the Agreement. When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order or when a Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, CONTRACTOR's fee shall be determined.
- D. Documentation: Whenever the Cost of the Work for any purpose is to be determined, CONTRACTOR will establish and maintain records thereof in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and submit in a form acceptable to OWNER an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

11.2 Cash Allowances

- A. It is understood that CONTRACTOR has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named in the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be performed for such sums as may be acceptable to OWNER. CONTRACTOR agrees that:
 - 1. the allowances include the cost to CONTRACTOR (less any applicable trade discounts) of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the Site, and all applicable taxes; and

- 2. CONTRACTOR's costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for the allowances have been included in the Contract Price and not in the allowances, and no demand for additional payment on account of any of the foregoing will be valid.
- B. Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued as recommended by OWNER to significantly deviate from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement; and
 - 1. there is no corresponding adjustment with respect any other item of Work; and
 - 2. if CONTRACTOR believes that CONTRACTOR is entitled to an increase in Contract Price as a result of having incurred additional expense or OWNER believes that OWNER is entitled to a decrease in Contract Price and the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of any such increase or decrease.

11.3 Unit Price Work

- A. Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the sum of the unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Agreement. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. Determinations of the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by CONTRACTOR will be made by CONTRACTOR.
- B. Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by CONTRACTOR to be adequate to cover CONTRACTOR's overhead and profit for each separately identified item.
- 12 CHANGE OF CONTRACT PRICE; CHANGE OF CONTRACT TIMES reflect actual amounts due CONTRACTOR on account of Work covered by allowances, and the Contract Price shall be correspondingly adjusted.

12.1 Change of Contract Price

- A. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order or by a Written Amendment. Any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price shall be based on written notice submitted by the party making the Claim to the OWNER and the other party to the Contract in accordance with the provisions.
- B. The value of any Work covered by a Change Order or of any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Price will be determined as follows:
 - 1. where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by application of such unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions); or

- 2. where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, by a mutually agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for overhead and profit; or
- 3. where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents and agreement to a lump sum is not reached, on the basis of the Cost of the Work (determined as provided) plus a CONTRACTOR's fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided).

12.2 Delays Beyond CONTRACTOR's Control

A. Where CONTRACTOR is prevented from completing any part of the Work within the Contract Times (or Milestones) due to delay beyond the control of CONTRACTOR, the Contract Times (or Milestones) will be extended in an amount equal to the time lost due to such delay if a Claim is made. Delays beyond the control of CONTRACTOR shall include, but not be limited to, acts or neglect by OWNER, acts or neglect of utility owners or other contractors performing other work, fires, floods, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions, or acts of God.

12.3 Delays Within CONTRACTOR's Control

A. The Contract Times will not be extended due to delays within the control of CONTRACTOR. Delays attributable to and within the control of a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed to be delays within the control of CONTRACTOR.

12.4 Delays Beyond OWNER's and CONTRACTOR's Control

A. Where CONTRACTOR is prevented from completing any part of the Work within the Contract Times (or Milestones) due to delay beyond the control of both OWNER and CONTRACTOR, an extension of the Contract Times (or Milestones) in an amount equal to the time lost due to such delay shall be CONTRACTOR's sole and exclusive remedy for such delay.

12.5 Delay Damages

- A. In no event shall OWNER be liable to CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any other person or organization, or to any surety for or employee or agent of any of them, for damages arising out of or resulting from:
 - 1. delays caused by or within the control of CONTRACTOR; or
 - 2. delays beyond the control of both OWNER and CONTRACTOR including but not limited to fires, floods, epidemics, abnormal weather conditions, acts of God, or acts or neglect by utility owners or other contractors performing other work.
- B. Nothing bars a change in Contract Price to compensate CONTRACTOR due to delay, interference, or disruption directly attributable to actions or inactions of OWNER or anyone for whom OWNER is responsible

13 - TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK

13.1 Notice of Defects

A. Prompt notice of all defective Work of which OWNER has actual knowledge will be given to CONTRACTOR. All defective Work may be rejected, corrected, or accepted as provided.

13.2 Access to Work

A. OWNER, OWNER's Consultants, or other representatives and personnel of OWNER, independent testing laboratories, and governmental agencies with jurisdictional interests will have access to the Site and the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspecting, and testing. CONTRACTOR shall provide them proper and safe conditions for such access and advise them of CONTRACTOR's Site safety procedures and programs so that they may comply therewith as applicable.

13.3 Tests and Inspections

- A. CONTRACTOR shall give OWNER timely notice of readiness of the Work for all required inspections, tests, or approvals and shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required inspections or tests.
- B. If Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) specifically to be inspected, tested, or approved by an employee or other representative of such public body, CONTRACTOR shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such inspections, tests, or approvals, pay all costs in connection therewith, and furnish OWNER the required certificates of inspection or approval.
- D. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for arranging and obtaining and shall pay all costs in connection with any inspections, tests, or approvals required for OWNER's acceptance of materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work and as required by the Specifications; or acceptance of materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for approval prior to CONTRACTOR's purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work. Such inspections, tests, or approvals shall be performed by organizations acceptable to OWNER.
- E. If any Work (or the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered by CONTRACTOR without written concurrence of OWNER, it must, if requested by OWNER, be uncovered for observation.
- F. Uncovering Work shall be at CONTRACTOR's expense unless CONTRACTOR has given OWNER timely notice of CONTRACTOR's intention to cover the same and OWNER has not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.

13.4 Uncovering Work

- A. If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of OWNER, it must, if requested by OWNER, be uncovered for OWNER's observation and replaced at CONTRACTOR's expense.
- В. If OWNER considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by OWNER or inspected or tested by others, CONTRACTOR, at OWNER's request, shall uncover, expose, or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing as OWNER may require, that portion of the Work in question, furnishing all necessary labor, material, and equipment. If it is found that such Work is defective, CONTRACTOR shall pay all Claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, and testing, and of satisfactory replacement or reconstruction (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others); and OWNER shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount thereof, OWNER may make a Claim. If, however, such Work is not found to be defective, CONTRACTOR shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times (or Milestones), or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, replacement, and reconstruction. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, CONTRACTOR may make a Claim.

13.5 OWNER May Stop the Work

A. If the Work is defective, or CONTRACTOR fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, OWNER may order CONTRACTOR to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of OWNER to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of OWNER to exercise this right for the benefit of CONTRACTOR, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or any surety for, or employee or agent of any of them.

13.6 Correction or Removal of Defective Work

A. CONTRACTOR shall correct all defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if the Work has been rejected by OWNER, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective. CONTRACTOR shall pay all Claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or removal (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others).

13.7 Correction Period

- A. If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by Laws or Regulations or by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents, any Work is found to be defective, or if the repair of any damages to the land or areas made available for CONTRACTOR's use by OWNER or permitted by Laws and Regulations is found to be defective, CONTRACTOR shall promptly, without cost to OWNER and in accordance with OWNER's written instructions: (i) repair such defective land or areas, or (ii) correct such defective Work or, if the defective Work has been rejected by OWNER, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective, and (iii) satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage to other Work, to the work of others or other land or areas resulting therefrom. If CONTRACTOR does not promptly comply with the terms of such instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, OWNER may have the defective Work corrected or repaired or may have the rejected Work removed and replaced, and all Claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or repair or such removal and replacement (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others) will be paid by CONTRACTOR.
- B. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications or by Written Amendment.
- C. Where defective Work (and damage to other Work resulting therefrom) has been corrected or removed and replaced under the correction period hereunder with respect to such Work will be extended for an additional period of one year after such correction or removal and replacement has been satisfactorily completed.
- D. CONTRACTOR's obligations are in addition to any other obligation or warranty. The provisions shall not be construed as a substitute for or a waiver of the provisions of any applicable statute of limitation or repose.

13.8 Acceptance of Defective Work

A. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, OWNER prefers to accept it, OWNER may do so. CONTRACTOR shall pay all Claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) attributable to OWNER's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective Work (such costs to be approved by OWNER as to reasonableness) and the diminished value of the Work to the extent not otherwise paid by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this sentence. If any such acceptance occurs prior to OWNER's approval of final payment, a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work, and OWNER shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the

Contract Price, reflecting the diminished value of Work so accepted. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount thereof, OWNER may make a Claim. If the acceptance occurs after such recommendation, an appropriate amount will be paid by CONTRACTOR to OWNER.

13.9 OWNER May Correct Defective Work

- A. If CONTRACTOR fails within a reasonable time after written notice from OWNER to correct defective Work or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by OWNER, or if CONTRACTOR fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, OWNER may, after seven days written notice to CONTRACTOR, correct and remedy any such deficiency.
- B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this paragraph, OWNER shall proceed expeditiously. In connection with such corrective and remedial action, OWNER may exclude CONTRACTOR from all or part of the Site, take possession of all or part of the Work and suspend CONTRACTOR's services related thereto, take possession of CONTRACTOR's tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery at the Site, and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which OWNER has paid CONTRACTOR but which are stored elsewhere. CONTRACTOR shall allow OWNER, OWNER's representatives, agents and employees, OWNER's other contractors, and OWNER's Consultants access to the Site to enable OWNER to exercise the rights and remedies under this paragraph.
- C. All Claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) incurred or sustained by OWNER in exercising the rights and remedies will be charged against CONTRACTOR, and a Change Order will be issued incorporating the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work; and OWNER shall be entitled to an appropriate decrease in the Contract Price. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of the adjustment, OWNER may make a Claim. Such claims, costs, losses and damages will include but not be limited to all costs of repair, or replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal, or replacement of CONTRACTOR's defective Work.
- D. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Times (or Milestones) because of any delay in the performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by OWNER of OWNER's rights and remedies.

14 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR AND COMPLETION

14.1 Schedule of Values

A. The schedule of values established as provided will serve as the basis for progress payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application for Payment acceptable to OWNER. Progress payments on account of Unit Price Work will be based on the number of units completed.

14.2 Progress Payments

A. Applications for Payments

- 1. At least seven (7) days before the date established for each progress payment (but not more often than once a month), CONTRACTOR shall submit to OWNER for review an Application for Payment filled out and signed by CONTRACTOR covering the Work completed as of the date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the Site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice, or other documentation warranting that OWNER has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all Liens and evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance or other arrangements to protect OWNER's interest therein, all of which must be satisfactory to OWNER.
- 2. Beginning with the second Application for Payment, each Application shall include an affidavit of CONTRACTOR stating that all previous progress payments received on account of the Work have been applied on account to discharge CONTRACTOR's legitimate obligations associated with prior Applications for Payment.
- 3. The amount of retainage with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement.

B. Review of Applications

- 1. OWNER will, within five (5) days after receipt of each Application for Payment, either indicate in writing an approval of payment or return the Application to CONTRACTOR indicating in writing OWNER's reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, CONTRACTOR may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application.
- 2. OWNER's approval of any payment requested in an Application for Payment will be based on OWNER's observations on the Site of the executed Work and on OWNER's review of the Application for Payment and the accompanying data and schedules, that to the best of OWNER's knowledge, information and belief:
 - a. the Work has progressed to the point indicated;
 - b. the quality of the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents, to a final determination of quantities and classifications for Unit Price Work, and to any other qualifications stated in the recommendation); and

- c. the conditions precedent to CONTRACTOR's being entitled to such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is OWNER's responsibility to observe the Work.
- 3. By recommending any such payment OWNER will not thereby be deemed to have represented that: (i) inspections made to check the quality or the quantity of the Work as it has been performed have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of the Work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to OWNER in the Contract Documents; or (ii) that there may not be other matters or issues between the parties that might entitle CONTRACTOR to be paid additionally by OWNER or entitle OWNER to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR.
- 4. Neither OWNER's review of CONTRACTOR's Work for the purposes of approving payments nor OWNER's approval of any payment, including final payment, will impose responsibility on OWNER to supervise, direct, or control the Work or for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to CONTRACTOR's performance of the Work. Additionally, said review or recommendation will not impose responsibility on OWNER to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes CONTRACTOR has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract Price, or to determine that title to any of the Work, materials, or equipment has passed to OWNER free and clear of any Liens.
- 5. OWNER may refuse to recommend the whole or any part of any payment if, in OWNER's opinion, it would be incorrect to make the representations. OWNER may also refuse to recommend any such payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence or the results of subsequent inspections or tests, revise or revoke any such payment recommendation previously made, to such extent as may be necessary in OWNER's opinion to protect OWNER from loss because:
 - a. the Work is defective, or completed Work has been damaged, requiring correction or replacement;
 - b. the Contract Price has been reduced by Written Amendment or Change Orders;
 - c. OWNER has been required to correct defective Work or complete Work; or
 - d. OWNER has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated.

C. Payment Becomes Due

1. Within thirty days (30) after presentation of the Application for Payment to OWNER with OWNER's approval, the amount recommended will (subject to the provisions) become due, and when due will be paid by OWNER to CONTRACTOR.

D. Reduction in Payment

- 1. OWNER may refuse to make payment of the full amount because:
 - a. claims have been made against OWNER on account of CONTRACTOR's performance or furnishing of the Work;
 - b. Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, except where CONTRACTOR has delivered a specific Bond satisfactory to OWNER to secure the satisfaction and discharge of such Liens;
 - c. there are other items entitling OWNER to a set-off against the amount recommended; or
 - d. OWNER has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events enumerated.
- 2. If OWNER refuses to make payment of the full amount, OWNER must give CONTRACTOR immediate written notice stating the reasons for such action and promptly pay CONTRACTOR any amount remaining after deduction of the amount so withheld. OWNER shall promptly pay CONTRACTOR the amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to by OWNER and CONTRACTOR, when CONTRACTOR corrects to OWNER's satisfaction the reasons for such action.
- 3. If it is subsequently determined that OWNER's refusal of payment was not justified, the amount wrongfully withheld shall be treated as an amount due.

14.3 CONTRACTOR's Warranty of Title

A. CONTRACTOR warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment covered by any Application for Payment, whether incorporated in the Project or not, will pass to OWNER no later than the time of payment free and clear of all Liens.

14.4 Substantial Completion

A. When CONTRACTOR considers the entire Work ready for its intended use CONTRACTOR shall notify OWNER in writing that the entire Work is substantially complete (except for items specifically listed by CONTRACTOR as incomplete) and request that OWNER issue a certificate of Substantial Completion. Promptly thereafter, OWNER and CONTRACTOR shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If OWNER does not consider the Work substantially complete, OWNER will notify CONTRACTOR in writing giving the reasons therefor. If OWNER considers the Work substantially complete, OWNER will prepare a tentative certificate of Substantial Completion which shall fix the date of Substantial Completion. There shall be attached to the certificate a tentative list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment. If OWNER concludes that the Work is not substantially complete, OWNER will notify CONTRACTOR in writing, stating the reasons therefore. At the time of delivery of the tentative certificate of Substantial Completion OWNER will deliver to CONTRACTOR a written recommendation as to division of responsibilities pending final payment

between OWNER and CONTRACTOR with respect to security, operation, safety, and protection of the Work, maintenance, heat, utilities, insurance, and warranties and guarantees. Unless OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing, aforesaid recommendation will be binding on OWNER and CONTRACTOR until final payment.

B. OWNER shall have the right to exclude CONTRACTOR from the Site after the date of Substantial Completion, but OWNER shall allow CONTRACTOR reasonable access to complete or correct items on the tentative list.

14.5 Partial Utilization

- A. Use by OWNER at OWNER's option of any substantially completed part of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents, or which OWNER and CONTRACTOR agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable part of the Work that can be used by OWNER for its intended purpose without significant interference with CONTRACTOR's performance of the remainder of the Work, may be accomplished prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work subject to the following conditions.
 - 1. OWNER at any time may request CONTRACTOR in writing to permit OWNER to use any such part of the Work which OWNER believes to be ready for its intended use and substantially complete. If CONTRACTOR agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, CONTRACTOR will certify to OWNER that such part of the Work is substantially complete and request OWNER to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work. CONTRACTOR at any time may notify OWNER in writing that CONTRACTOR considers any such part of the Work ready for its intended use and substantially complete and request OWNER to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work. Within a reasonable time after either such request, OWNER and CONTRACTOR shall make an inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If OWNER does not consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, OWNER will notify CONTRACTOR in writing giving the reasons therefor. If OWNER considers that part of the Work to be substantially complete, the provisions will apply with respect to certification of Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof and access thereto.
 - 2. No occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work may occur prior to compliance with the requirements regarding property insurance.

14.6 Final Inspection

A. Upon written notice from CONTRACTOR that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete, OWNER will promptly make a final inspection WITH CONTRACTOR and will notify CONTRACTOR in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work is incomplete or defective. CONTRACTOR shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.

14.7 Final Payment

A. Application for Payment

- 1. After CONTRACTOR has, in the opinion of OWNER, satisfactorily completed all corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with the Contract Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, Bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance certificates of inspection, marked-up record documents, and other documents, CONTRACTOR may make application for final payment following the procedure for progress payments.
- 2. The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied (except as previously delivered) by: (i) all documentation called for in the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the evidence of insurance required; (ii) consent of the surety, if any, to final payment; and (iii) complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to OWNER) of all Lien rights arising out of or Liens filed in connection with the Work.
- 3. In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified and as approved by OWNER, CONTRACTOR may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of CONTRACTOR that: (i) the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment for which a Lien could be filed; and (ii) all payrolls, material and equipment bills, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which OWNER or OWNER's property might in any way be responsible have been paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full, CONTRACTOR may furnish a Bond or other collateral satisfactory to OWNER to indemnify OWNER against any Lien.

B. Review of Application and Acceptance

1. If, on the basis of OWNER's observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, and OWNER's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation as required by the Contract Documents, OWNER is satisfied that the Work has been completed and CONTRACTOR's other obligations under the Contract Documents have been fulfilled, OWNER will, within ten days after receipt of the final Application for Payment, process payment. At the same time OWNER will also give written notice to CONTRACTOR that the Work is acceptable subject to the provisions. Otherwise, OWNER will return the Application for Payment to CONTRACTOR, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, in which case CONTRACTOR shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.

C. Payment Becomes Due

1. Thirty (30) days after the presentation to OWNER of the approved Application for Payment and accompanying documentation, the final payment amount will become due and, when due, will be paid by OWNER to CONTRACTOR.

14.8 Final Completion Delayed

A. If, through no fault of CONTRACTOR, final completion of the Work is significantly delayed, and if OWNER so confirms, OWNER shall, upon receipt of CONTRACTOR's final Application for Payment, and without terminating the Agreement, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted. If the remaining balance to be held by OWNER for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than the retainage stipulated in the Agreement, and if Bonds have been furnished as required, the written consent of the surety to the payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by CONTRACTOR to OWNER with the Application for such payment. Such payment shall be made under the terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims.

15 - SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

15.1 OWNER May Suspend Work

A. At any time and without cause, OWNER may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not more than 90 consecutive days by notice in writing to CONTRACTOR which will fix the date on which Work will be resumed. CONTRACTOR shall resume the Work on the date so fixed. CONTRACTOR shall be allowed an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to any such suspension if CONTRACTOR makes a Claim.

15.2 OWNER May Terminate for Cause

- A. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will justify termination for cause:
 - 1. CONTRACTOR's persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment or failure to adhere to the progress schedule established as adjusted from time to time;
 - 2. CONTRACTOR's disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction;
 - 3. CONTRACTOR's disregard of the authority of OWNER; or
 - 4. CONTRACTOR's violation in any substantial way of any provisions of the Contract Documents.

- В. If one or more of the events identified occur, OWNER may, after giving CONTRACTOR (and the surety, if any) seven days written notice, terminate the services of CONTRACTOR, exclude CONTRACTOR from the Site, and take possession of the Work and of all CONTRACTOR's tools, appliances, construction equipment, and machinery at the Site, and use the same to the full extent they could be used by CONTRACTOR (without liability to CONTRACTOR for trespass or conversion), incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which OWNER has paid CONTRACTOR but which are stored elsewhere, and finish the Work as OWNER may deem expedient. In such case, CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is finished. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) sustained by OWNER arising out of or relating to completing the Work, such excess will be paid to CONTRACTOR. If such claims, costs, losses, and damages exceed such unpaid balance, CONTRACTOR shall pay the difference to OWNER. Such claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred by OWNER will be reviewed as to their reasonableness and, when so approved, incorporated in a Change Order. When exercising any rights or remedies under this paragraph OWNER shall not be required to obtain the lowest price for the Work performed.
- C. Where CONTRACTOR's services have been so terminated by OWNER, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of OWNER against CONTRACTOR then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of moneys due CONTRACTOR by OWNER will not release CONTRACTOR from liability.

15.3 OWNER May Terminate For Convenience

- A. Upon seven days written notice to CONTRACTOR, OWNER may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of OWNER, elect to terminate the Contract. In such case, CONTRACTOR shall be paid (without duplication of any items):
 - 1. for completed and acceptable Work executed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to the effective date of termination, including fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such Work;
 - 2. for expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the Contract Documents in connection with uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such expenses;
 - 3. for all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) incurred in settlement of terminated contracts with Subcontractors, Suppliers, and others; and
 - 4. for reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.

15.4 CONTRACTOR May Stop Work or Terminate

If, through no act or fault of CONTRACTOR, the Work is suspended for more than A. 90 consecutive days by OWNER or under an order of court or other public authority, or OWNER fails to act on any Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or OWNER fails for 30 days to pay CONTRACTOR any sum finally determined to be due, then CONTRACTOR may, upon seven days written notice to OWNER, and provided OWNER does not remedy such suspension or failure within that time, terminate the Contract and recover from OWNER payment on the same terms as provided. In lieu of terminating the Contract and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if OWNER has failed to act on an Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or OWNER has failed for 30 days to pay CONTRACTOR any sum finally determined to be due, CONTRACTOR may, seven days after written notice to OWNER, stop the Work until payment is made of all such amounts due CONTRACTOR, including interest thereon. The provisions are not intended to preclude CONTRACTOR from making a Claim for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times or otherwise for expenses or damage directly attributable to CONTRACTOR's stopping the Work as permitted by this paragraph.

16 - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

16.1 Methods and Procedures

A. Dispute resolution methods and procedures, if any, shall be as set forth in the Supplementary Conditions. If no method and procedure has been set forth, and subject to the provisions, OWNER and CONTRACTOR may exercise such rights or remedies as either may otherwise have under the Contract Documents or by Laws or Regulations in respect of any dispute.

17 - MISCELLANEOUS

17.1 Giving Notice

A. Whenever any provision of the Contract Documents requires the giving of written notice, it will be deemed to have been validly given if delivered in person to the individual or to a member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for whom it is intended, or if delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the last business address known to the giver of the notice.

17.2 Computation of Times

A. When any period of time is referred to in the Contract Documents by days, it will be computed to exclude the first and include the last day of such period. If the last day of any such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction, such day will be omitted from the computation.

17.3 Cumulative Remedies

A. The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies available hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available by Laws or Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or by other provisions of the Contract Documents, and the provisions of this paragraph will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.

17.4 Survival of Obligations

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by, or given in accordance with the Contract Documents, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the Contract Documents, will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work or termination or completion of the Agreement.

17.5 Controlling Law

- A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.
- B. For costs incurred, the CONTRACTOR's fee shall be five percent;
- C. Where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed fee is agreed upon, the intent is that the Subcontractor who actually performs the Work, at whatever tier, will be paid a fee of 15 percent of the costs incurred by such Subcontractor and that any higher tier Subcontractor and CONTRACTOR will each be paid a fee of five percent of the amount paid to the next lower tier Subcontractor;
- D. No fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized;
- E. The amount of credit to be allowed by CONTRACTOR to OWNER for any change which results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in cost plus a deduction in CONTRACTOR's fee by an amount equal to five percent of such net decrease; and
- F. When both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in CONTRACTOR's fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change.

SECTION 6 SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

1 - DEFINITIONS & TERMINOLOGY

1.1 Defined terms

- A. Whenever used in the Contract Documents and printed with initial or all capital letters, the terms listed below will have the meanings indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.
 - 1. OWNER's Representative The OWNER's Representative shall be the OWNER as described in the General Conditions.
- B. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the notifying all property owners within and adjacent to the project twenty-for (24) hours prior to commencing construction operations. Said notice shall be in writing and in a form acceptable to the OWNER.
- C. Prior to the start of the project, the CONTRACTOR shall identify to the OWNER, any tree limbs which overly and interfere with the work. Said limbs to be removed by the OWNER.

2 – AVAILABILITY OF LANDS

A. The CONTRACTOR shall not, except after written consent from proper parties, enter or occupy with men, tools, materials or equipment, any privately- owned land except on easements provided herein.

3 – SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

- A. In the preparation of Drawings and Specifications, OWNER relied upon the following report of explorations and tests of the subsurface conditions at the site: None
- B. The asphalt pavement, curbs and existing sidewalks in the work area are considered to be in good to excellent condition prior to the start of the project.
- C. Any scars, nicks, gasoline, oil, etc., or other defacement or damage to the existing streets, curbs, or sidewalks will be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR to repair.
- D. Before beginning the job, the CONTRACTOR may point out and note to the inspector any specific areas that are already damaged. Thereafter, the CONTRACTOR will not be held responsible for repairs to these areas.

4 – CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

4.1 The following types of insurance shall be furnished for the duration of the project and Certificates of Insurance extending the provisions listed below shall be furnished to OWNER prior to or at the time the contract is executed by CONTRACTOR and before a Notice to Proceed is issued:

A. Worker's Compensation

1. Definitions:

- a. Certificate of coverage ("certificate") A copy of a certificate of insurance, a certificate of authority to self-insure issued by the commission, or a coverage agreement (TWCC-81, TWCC-82, TWCC-83, or TWCC-84), showing statutory workers' compensation insurance coverage for the person's or entity's employees providing services on a project, for the duration of the project.
- b. Duration of the project includes the time from the beginning of the work on the project until the contractor's/person's work on the project has been completed and accepted by the governmental entity.
- c. Person's providing services on the project ("subcontractor") includes all persons or entities performing all or part of the services the contractor has undertaken to perform on the project, regardless of whether that person contracted directly with the contractor and regardless of whether that person has employees. This includes, without limitation, independent contractors, subcontractors, leasing companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or employees of any entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the project. "Services" include, without limitation, providing, hauling, or delivering equipment or materials, or providing labor, transportation, or other service related to a project. "Services" does not include activities unrelated to the project, such as food/beverage vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets.
- 2. The contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011 (44) for all employees of the contractor providing services on the project, for the duration of the project.
- 3. The contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the governmental entity prior to being awarded the contract.
- 4. If the coverage period shown on the contractor's current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project, the contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new certificate of coverage with the governmental entity showing that coverage has been extended.
- 5. The contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project, and provide to the governmental entity:
 - a. a certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project, so the governmental entity will have on file certificates of coverage for all persons providing services on the project; and
 - b. no later than seven days after receipt by the contractor, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period

shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project.

- 6. The contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the project and for one year thereafter.
- 7. The contractor shall notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10 days after the contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project.
- 8. The contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed by the Texas Workers' Compensation Commission, informing all persons providing services on the project that they are required to be covered, and stating how a person may verify coverage and report lack of coverage.
- 9. The contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services on a project, to:
 - a. provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011 (44) for all of its employees providing services on the project, for the duration of the project;
 - b. provide to the contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the project, a certificate of coverage showing that coverage is being provided services on the project for the duration of the project;
 - c. provide the contractor, prior to the end of the coverage period, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project;
 - d. obtain from each other person with whom it contracts, and provide to the contractor:
 - i.certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on the project; and
 - ii.a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, prior to the end of the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the current coverage ends during the duration of the project;
 - e. retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for one year thereafter;
 - f. notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10 days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project; and

- g. contractually require each person with whom it contracts, to perform as required, with the certificates of coverage to be provided to the person for whom they are providing services.
- 10. By signing this contract or providing or causing to be a provided a certificate of coverage, the contractor is representing to the governmental entity that all employees of the contractor who will provide services on the project will be covered by workers' compensation coverage for the duration of the project, that the coverage will be based on proper reporting or classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all coverage agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-insured, with the commission's Division of Self-Insurance Regulation. Providing false or misleading information may subject the contractor to administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil penalties, or civil actions.
- 11. The contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the contractor which entitles the governmental entity to declare the contract void if the contractor does not remedy the breach within ten days after receipt of the notice of breach from the governmental entity.
- B. Automobile Liability Insurance with limits of:
 - 1. Bodily Injury \$1,000,000 per person \$3,000,000 per accident
 - 2. Property Damage \$300,000 per accident
 - 3. The Insurance company must have as a minimum a current A.M. Best rating of A.
 - 4. General Requirements for Insurance Coverage:
 - a. The Certificate of Insurance furnished by the Contractor shall show by specific reference that each of the foregoing items have been provided for;
 - b. Certificates of Insurance required for each copy of the agreement which specifically set forth evidence of all required coverage will be filed with the City prior to the City's execution of the contract. Worker's Compensation Insurance coverage must be provided to the City prior to the City's award of the contract.
 - c. The Certificates of Insurance furnished by the contractor as evidence of the Insurance maintained by the contractor will include a clause obligating the Insurer to give the City of Castle Hills thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or any material change in the insurance coverage.
 - d. Waiver of Subrogation: The City of Castle Hills and the Contractor waive all rights and the rights of their respective insurance companies against each other for damages caused by fire or other perils to the extent such damages are covered by property insurance purchased by either party.

- C. Comprehensive General Liability endorsed to include blanket contractual coverage:
 - 1. Bodily Injury \$2,000,000 each occurrence with a deductible of not more than \$2,500.
 - 2. Property Damage Liability \$250,000 each occurrence; \$250,000 aggregate.

3. This insurance shall:

- a. Include completed operation coverage which is to be kept in force by the Contractor for a period of not less than one year after the completion of the work provided for or performed under these specifications;
- b. Not be subject to any of the special property damage liability exclusions commonly referred to as the XCU exclusions pertaining to blasting or explosion, collapse, or structural damage and underground property;
- c. Not be subject to any exclusion of property used by the insured or property in the case, custody or control of the insured or property as to which the insured for any purpose is exercising physical control;
- d. The OWNER shall be named as an additional insured for the insurance coverage. In naming the OWNER as an additional insured on our comprehensive General Liability Insurance, the following words apply:

"Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Castle Hills from and against any liability, loss, cost and expense ("Liability") claimed by a third party (including reasonable attorney's fees and cost of defense) resulting from Contractor's performance of the Work to the extent that such Liability:

- 1) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to the injury to or destruction of tangible personal property; and,
- 2) is caused or contributed to by any neglect or fault of Contractor, its subcontractors, or their respective employees.
- e. The Insurance company must have as a minimum a current A.M. Best rating of A.
- f. Manufacturer's and Contractors' Liability insurance is not an acceptable substitute for Commercial Liability insurance.
- D. When explosives are used, Comprehensive General Liability on an occurrence basis endorsed to include blanket contractual coverage:
 - a. Bodily Injury \$ 2,000,000 each accident

- b. Property Damage Liability \$ 300,000 each accident; \$ 3,000,000 aggregate.
- E. The OWNER shall be listed as the Certificate Holder, and the OWNER shall be named as Additional Insured in all coverage described in the above paragraphs except Worker's compensation.
- F. Insurance and additional Insured requirements shall apply to and be enforced equally upon authorized subcontractors as well as the CONTRACTOR.
- G. In the submission of the Certificate of Insurance, the insurance company in every case must agree to provide notice of cancellation of any insurance to the OWNER ten (10) days prior to such cancellation of policies covered by certificates.

5 – STREET AND DRIVEWAY CLOSING

After the CONTRACTOR has given the property owners not less than 24 nor more than 72 hours advance notice, he may close ½ of the driveway necessary for the day's operations. The CONTRACTOR will advise the Fire Marshall (684-3219) in advance of each closing. Suitable detour routes must be in place. At the end of each day, the closed driveway areas shall be reopened. All driveways must be accessible during the course of the work except for minimum periods and only after the CONTRACTOR has given property owners 24 hours' notice. CONTRACTOR shall not start work that would keep driveways blocked during the weekends. In the event of inclement weather, the CONTRACTOR must maintain possible access to the owners.

5.2 Barricades and Flagmen

- A. The CONTRACTOR is to provide himself with necessary temporary barricades and traffic cones sufficient to alert the traffic in advance. Where lanes of traffic are to be closed, suitable barricades, warning signs and markers are to be provided by the CONTRACTOR.
 - 1. Barricades and traffic control devices shall follow the Texas Uniform Municipal Control Devices standards to the satisfaction of the OWNER.
 - 2. The OWNER has the right to prevent work from starting until suitable traffic control devices are provided, in the opinion of the OWNER.
 - 3. The OWNER may direct the CONTRACTOR to provide additional traffic control devices and/or flagmen as they deem necessary to protect the public. All barricades will have one flashing light at night. All costs for traffic management and barricades will be included in the cost of the work.

6 - HAZARD COMMUNICATIONS PROGRAM

A. In compliance with Article 5182b, Texas Revised Civil Statutes, all employees are required to train and educate employees on the safe use and handling of hazardous materials that employees may be exposed to in the work place. The OWNER's Fire Chief is designated as the OWNER's HazComm Officer.

Subcontractors of the CONTRACTOR are also required to comply with the requirements of the act

- 1. CONTRACTORs are entitled to a copy of the OWNER's workplace chemical list to which the CONTRACTOR, its employees and agents may be exposed to in the workplace.
- 2. CONTRACTORS are also entitled to a copy of the MSDS sheets for any hazardous chemicals which the OWNER may have in the work
- 3. place. CONTRACTORs have the obligation to inform their employees and agents of all these requirements. Prior to the commencement of any work, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish the OWNER's HazComm Officer with the MSDS sheets for any hazardous chemicals brought into the OWNER's work-site that OWNER's employees will have exposure to. The CONTRACTOR shall sign the Attachment, (hazard Communications Contractor Acknowledgment) certifying receipt of this information.

7 – WATER FOR CONSTRUCTION

- A. All water required by the CONTRACTOR for his operations will be furnished without charge by OWNER at a point designated by the OWNER. The CONTRACTOR shall make all necessary connections, including valves and shall transport all water at his expense. If needed, the CONTRACTOR will be required to pay a deposit for a fire hydrant meter, which deposit will be returned when the fire hydrant meter is returned in good condition.
- B. All water furnished by the City shall be subject to the regulations of the City regarding prevention of waste and water conservation.

8 - POWER FOR CONSTRUCTION

A. The CONTRACTOR shall make his own arrangements for electric service and shall purchase all power required for his operation.

9 - SANITARY PROVISIONS

A. The CONTRACTOR shall establish and enforce among his employee such regulations in regard to cleanliness and disposal of garbage and waste as shall tend to prevent the inception and spread of infectious or contagious diseases and to prevent effectively the creation of a nuisance about the work on any property either public or private; and such regulations as are required by the OWNER shall be put into immediate force and effect by the CONTRACTOR. The necessary sanitary conveniences for the use of laborers on the work, properly secluded from public observation, shall be constructed and maintained by the CONTRACTOR in such a manner and at such points as shall be approved by the OWNER; and their use shall be strictly enforced by the CONTRACTOR. All sanitary laws and regulations of the State of Texas and the OWNER's jurisdiction shall be strictly complied with.

SECTION 7 WAGES AND COMPENSATION

1 - GENERAL STATEMENT

This is a 100% locally funded and competitively bid Public Works Contract and Article 5159a, Revised Civil Statutes of Texas, as amended, requires that not less than the general prevailing wage rates (minimum hourly base pay and minimum hourly fringe benefits contribution) for work of similar character be paid to CONTRACTOR and subcontractor employees. These local prevailing and adopted wage rates are derived from the most current applicable federal prevailing wage rates as published by the United States Department of Labor, Dallas, Texas pursuant to the original intent and authority of the City of Castle Hills Ordinance passed by the City Council of the City of Castle Hills. Copies of both the current Ordinance and the wage rates, and are included instruments of this Contract and full compliance with same shall be required.

Any deviation from Wage and Labor Standard Provisions compliance may be cause for City's withholding either interim or final payment to the CONTRACTOR until such deviations are properly corrected.

2 - WAGE & HOUR OFFICE, PUBLIC WORKS, RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. The City of Castle Hills 's Project Manager is primarily responsible for all Wage and Labor Standard Provisions investigation and enforcement and will monitor CONTRACTOR/subcontractors practices to assure the City Manager that:
 - 1. Appropriate weekly compliance statements and payroll records are submitted to the City by the CONTRACTOR/subcontractors and that such are reviewed for compliance with Wage and Labor Standard Provisions.
 - 2. Apprentices/trainees working on the project are properly identified by CONTRACTOR/subcontractor on payroll records and documented as being included in programs currently sanctioned by appropriate federal or state regulatory agencies.
 - 3. Applicable Wage Determination Decisions, including any applicable modifications and related statements are posted at the work-site by the CONTRACTOR and that proper job classifications and commensurate minimum hourly base and fringe wage rates are paid.
 - 4. Employees are periodically interviewed (at random) on each project as required.
 - 5. That no person employed by CONTRACTOR or subcontractor is induced against his will, by any means, to give up any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled.
 - 6. That any and all periodic administrative directives to the Project Manager from the City Manager are being implemented.

3 - CLAIMS & DISPUTES PERTAINING TO WAGE RATES

Claims and disputes not promptly and routinely settled by the CONTRACTOR and/or subcontractor and employees pertaining to wage rates, or to job classifications of labor employed upon the work covered by the Contract, shall be reported by the employee in writing, within 60 calendar days of employee's receipt of any allegedly incorrect classification, wage or benefit report, to the Public Works Department, City of Castle Hills, for further investigation. Claims and disputes not reported by the employee to the Project Manager in writing within sixty (60) calendar day period shall be deemed waived by the employee for the purposes of the City administering and enforcing the City's Contract rights against the CONTRACTOR on behalf of the employee. Waivers by the employee of this City intervention shall not constitute waivers by the City or employee to independently pursue contractual rights it has against the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor for breach of Contract and other sanctions available to enforce the Wage and Labor Standard Provisions.

4 - BREACH OF WAGE & LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS

The City of Castle Hills reserves the right to terminate this Contract for cause if the CONTRACTOR/subcontractors shall knowingly and continuously breach, without timely restitution or cure, any of these governing Wage and Labor Standard Provisions. A knowing and un-remedied proven violation of these Wage and Labor Standard Provisions may also be grounds for debarment of the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor from future City of Castle Hills contracts for lack of responsibility, as determined by the City of Castle Hills. Recurrent violations, whether remedied or not, will be considered by the City Manager when assessing the responsibility history of potential CONTRACTOR/subcontractor prior to a competitive award of future Public Work projects. The general remedies are not exhaustive and not cumulative, for the City reserves legal and contractual rights to others specific remedies outlined herein below and in other parts of this Contract and as are allowed by applicable City of Castle Hills Ordinances, State and Federal statutes.

5 - EMPLOYMENT OF LABORERS/MECHANICS NOT LISTED IN WAGE DETERMINATION DECISION

In the event that a Contractor/subcontractor discovers that construction of a particular work element requires a certain employee classification and skill that is not listed in the wage determination contained Documents, decision in the original Contract Contractor/subcontractors will make prompt inquiry (before bidding, if possible) to the Wage and Hour Monitor identifying that class of laborers/mechanics not listed in the wage determination decision who are intended to be employed, or who are being employed, under the contract Using his best judgment and information resources available to him at the time, and any similar prior decisions, the City Manager, City of Castle Hills, shall classify said laborers/mechanics by issuing a special local wage determination decision to the Contractor or subcontractor, which shall be enforced by the Wage and Hour Monitor.

6 - OVERTIME COMPENSATION ON NON-FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS

No CONTRACTOR/subcontractor contracting for any part of the non-federally funded Contract Work (except for work site related security guard services), which may require or involve the employment of laborers/mechanics, shall require or permit any laborer/mechanic in any seven (7) calendar day work period in which he/she is employed on such work, to work in excess of 40 hours in such work period, unless said laborer/mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the

basic hourly rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a seven (7) calendar day work period. Any applicable fringe benefits must be paid for straight time and overtime; however, fringe benefits are not included when computing the overtime rate.

7 - PAYMENT OF CASH EQUIVALENT FRINGE BENEFITS

- A. All laborers/mechanics employed to construct the work governed by this Contract shall be paid not less than weekly the full amount of wages due (minimum hourly base pay and any applicable minimum hourly fringe benefit contribution for all hours worked, including overtime) for the immediately preceding pay period, computed at wage and fringe rates not less than those contained in the wage determination decision included in this Contract. Only payroll deductions as are mandated by state or federal law and those legal deductions previously approved in writing by the employee, or as are otherwise permitted by state or federal law, may be withheld by the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor.
- B. Should the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor subscribe to fringe benefit programs for employees, such programs shall be fully approved by the City in adopting a previous United States Department of Labor decision on such fringe benefit programs or by applying DOL criteria, in rendering a local decision on the adequacy of the fringe benefit programs. The approved programs shall be in place at the time of City Contract execution and provisions thereof disclosed to the Wage and Hour Monitor, City of Castle Hills, for legal review prior to project commencement.
- C. Regular CONTRACTOR/subcontractor contributions made to, or costs incurred for, approved fringe benefit plans, funds or other benefit programs that cover periods of time greater than the one week payroll period (e.g., monthly or quarterly, etc.) Shall be prorated by the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor on weekly payroll records to reflect the equivalent value of the hourly and weekly.
- D. The CONTRACTOR/subcontractor is allowed to pay a minimum hourly cash equivalent of any applicable minimum hourly fringe benefits listed in the wage determination decision, in lieu of the contribution of benefits to a permissible fringe benefit plan, for all hours worked, including overtime. An employee is not allowed to receive less than the minimum hourly basic rate of pay specified in the wage determination decision.

8 - WORK CONDUCTED ON HOLIDAYS - NON-FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS

If a laborer/mechanic is employed in the normal course and scope of his or her work on the job site on New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, or Christmas Day, or the calendar days observed as such in any given year, work shall be paid for at a no less than one and one half times the regular minimum hourly base pay regardless of the total number of hours the laborer/mechanic has accumulated during the pay period.

9 - UNDERPAYMENT OF WAGES OR SALARIES

A. When a "full investigation" (as called for in and as construed under Article 5159a, Section 2, and as further generally described in an administrative directive to the City's Project Manager from the City Manager entitled "Conducting Wage and Labor Standards Investigations on 100% Locally-funded City Construction Project", as may be amended) evidences' underpayment of wages by CONTRACTOR or subcontractor to laborers/mechanics employed upon the work covered by the

Contract, the City of Castle Hills, in addition to such other rights as may be afforded it under State and/or Federal law and/or this Contract, shall withhold from the CONTRACTOR, out of any payments (interim progress and/or final) due the CONTRACTOR, so much thereof as the City of Castle Hills may consider necessary to secure ultimate payment by the appropriate party to such laborers/mechanics, of full wages required by the Contract, plus a possible penalty (See B. below). The amount so withheld, excluding any possible penalty to be retained by the City, may be disbursed at an appropriate time after "full investigation" by the City of Castle Hills, for and on behalf of the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor (as may be appropriate), to the respective laborers/mechanics to whom the same is due, or on their behalf to fringe benefit plans, funds, or programs for any type of minimum fringe benefits prescribed in the applicable wage determination decision.

- B. Article 5159a, Revised Civil Statutes of Texas, as amended, states that CONTRACTOR shall forfeit as a penalty to the City of Castle Hills the sum of sixty dollars (\$60.00) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each laborer, workman, or mechanic, who is paid less than the said stipulated rate for any work done under this Contract whether by the CONTRACTOR himself, or by any subcontractor working under him. Pursuant to and supplemental of this statutory authority, the City of Castle Hills and the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor contractually acknowledges and agrees that said sixty dollars (\$60.00) a statutory penalty shall be construed by and between the City of Castle Hills and the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor as liquidated damages, and not as a penalty, and will apply to any violations herein, resulting from CONTRACTOR/subcontractor underpayment violations.
- C. If unpaid or underpaid workers cannot be located by the CONTRACTOR or the City after diligent efforts to accomplish same, unpaid or underpaid wages shall be reserved by the City in a special "unfound worker's account" established by the City of Castle Hills, for such employees. If after one (1) year from the final acceptance of the project by the City, workers still cannot be located, in order that the City can make effective interim re-use of the money, such wages, and any associated liquidated damages may be used to defray actual costs incurred by the City in attempting to locate said workers, and any remaining monies may then revert back to the City's original funding source for the project. However, unpaid or underpaid workers for whom money was originally reserved are eligible to claim recovery from the City for a period of not to exceed three (3) years from the final acceptance of the project by the City. Recovery after expiration of the three (3) year period is prohibited.

10 - POSTING WAGE DETERMINATION DECISIONS AND NOTICE TO LABORERS'/MECHANICS' STATEMENTS

The applicable wage determination decision as described in the "General Statement" (and as specifically included in each project contract), outlining the various workers' classifications and mandatory minimum wages and minimum hourly fringe benefits deductions, if any, of laborers/mechanics employed and to be employed upon the work covered by this Contract, shall be displayed by the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor at the site of work a conspicuous and prominent public place, readily and routinely accessible to workmen for the duration of the project. In addition, the CONTRACTOR / subcontractor agrees with the contents of the following statement, and shall display same, in English and Spanish, near the display of the wage determination decision at the site of work:

"NOTICE TO LABORERS/MECHANICS

Both the City of Castle Hills and the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor agree that you must be compensated with not less than the minimum hourly base pay and minimum hourly fringe benefit contribution in accordance with the wage rates publicly posted at this job site, and as are applicable to the classification of work you perform.

Additionally, you must be paid not less than one and one-half times your basic hourly rate of pay for any hours worked over 40 in any seven (7) calendar day work period, and for any work conducted on New Year's Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day or the calendar days observed as such in any given year.

Apprentice and trainee hourly wage rates and ratios apply only to apprentices and trainees recognized under approved Federal, or State, apprenticeship training programs registered with the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, United States Department of Labor.

If you believe that your employer is not paying the posted minimum wage for the type of work you do, you must make direct inquiry to the employer and inquire in writing, within 60 days calendar days of your receipt of any allegedly incorrect wage or benefit check or report, to the City of Castle Hills City Manager, 209 Lemonwood, Castle Hills, Texas 78213.

It is mandatory that you promptly file written inquiry of any allegedly incorrect wage or benefit checks or reports with the City of Castle Hills Project Manager within the sixty (60) calendar day period, so that you do not waive your potential right of recovery under the provisions of the City of Castle Hills Public Works Contract that governs this project."

Both the City of Castle Hills and the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor agree that no laborer/mechanic who files a complaint or inquiry concerning alleged underpayment of wages or benefits, shall be discharged by the employer, or in other manner be discriminated against by the employer, for filing such complaint or inquiry.

11 - PAYROLLS & BASIC PAYROLL RECORDS

A. The CONTRACTOR and each subcontractor shall prepare payroll reports in accordance with the "General Guideline" instructions furnished by the Wage & Hour Monitor of the City of Castle Hills. Such payroll submittals shall contain the name and address of each such employee, his correct labor classification, rate of pay, daily and weekly number of hours worked, any deductions made, and actual basic hourly and fringe benefits paid. The CONTRACTOR shall submit payroll records each week and no later than seven (7) working days following completion of the work week being processed to the Project Manager, City of Castle Hills. These payroll records shall include certified copies of all payrolls of the CONTRACTOR and of his subcontractors, it being understood that the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the submission and general mathematical accuracy of payroll from all of his subcontractors. Each such payroll submittal shall be on forms deemed satisfactory to the City's Project Manager and shall contain a "Weekly Statement of Compliance", as called for by the Contract Documents. Such payrolls will be forwarded to City

Manager, City Secretary, and Project Manager, City of Castle Hills, 209 Lemonwood, Castle Hills, Texas 78213.

- B. Copies of payroll submittals and basic supporting payroll records of the CONTRACTOR/subcontractors accounting for all laborers/mechanics employed under the work covered by this Contract, shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR/subcontractor during the course of the work, and preserved for a period of three (3) years after completion of the project. The CONTRACTOR/subcontractor shall maintain records which demonstrate: any CONTRACTOR commitment to provide fringe benefits to employees as may be mandated by the applicable wage determination decision; that the plan or program is adjudged financially responsible by the appropriate approving authority, (i.e. United States Department of Labor, United States Department of Treasury, etc.); and that the provisions, policies, certificates, and description of benefits of the plan or program as may be periodically amended, have been clearly communicated in a timely manner and in writing, to the laborers/mechanics affected prior to their performing work on the project.
- C. The CONTRACTOR/subcontractor shall make the above records available for inspection, copying, or transcribing by authorized representatives of the City of Castle Hills at reasonable times and locations for purposes of monitoring compliance with this Contract.

12 - LABOR DISPUTES

The CONTRACTOR/subcontractor shall immediately notify the City Manager or his designated representative of any actual or impending CONTRACTOR/subcontractor labor dispute which may affect, or is affecting, the schedule of the CONTRACTOR's or any other CONTRACTOR's or subcontractor's work. In addition, the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor shall consider all appropriate measures to eliminate or minimize the effect of such labor disputes on the schedule, including but not limited to such measures as: promptly seeking injunctive relief if appropriate; seeking appropriate legal equitable actions or remedies; taking such measures as establishing a reserved gate, as appropriate; if reasonable feasible, seeking other sources of supply or service; and any other measures that may be appropriately utilized to mitigate or eliminate the job site and scheduling effects of the labor dispute.

13 - COMPLAINTS, PROCEEDINGS, OR TESTIMONY BY EMPLOYEES

No laborers/mechanics to whom the wage, salary, or other labor standard provisions of this Contract are applicable shall be discharged, or in any other manner discriminated against by the CONTRACTOR/subcontractors, because such an employee has filed any formal inquiry or complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted, any legal or equitable proceeding, or has testified, or is about to testify, in any such proceeding under or relating to the wage and labor standards applicable under this Contract.

14 - "ANTI-KICKBACK" PROVISION

No person employed in the construction or repair of any City of Castle Hills Public Works Project shall be induced, by any means, to give up to any CONTRACTOR/subcontractor or public official or employee, any part of the hourly and/or fringe benefit compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled.

15 - "FALSE INFORMATION"

Any person employed by the CONTRACTOR/subcontractor in the construction or repair of any City of Castle Hills Public Works Project, who is proven to have knowingly and willfully falsified, concealed or covered up by any deceptive trick, scheme, or device a material fact, or made any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or representation, or made or used any false writing or document knowing the same to contain any false, fictitious or fraudulent statement or entry, shall be permanently removed from the job site by CONTRACTOR/subcontractor. The City of Castle Hills reserves the right to terminate this Contract for cause as a result of serious and uncured violations of this provision.

16 - JOB SITE CONDITIONS

CONTRACTORS/subcontractors will not allow any person employed for the project to work in surroundings or under construction conditions which are unsanitary, unhealthy, hazardous, or dangerous as governed by industry standards and appropriate local, state and federal statutes, ordinances, and regulatory guidelines.

17 - EMPLOYMENT OF CERTAIN PERSONS PROHIBITED

- A. The CONTRACTOR/subcontractor shall knowingly only employ persons of appropriate ages commensurate with the degree of required skill, strength, maturity and judgment associated with the activity to be engaged in, but not in less than the age of 14 years, as governed by Chapter 51 "Employment of Children", Texas Labor code, (Vernon's Texas Code Annotated) (as may be amended), and Texas Department of Labor and Standards rulings and interpretations associated with that statute. It is hereby noted that in some circumstances generally governed by this section, a federal statute (see: Fair Labor Standards Act, 29 USCS Section 212; Volume 6A of the Bureau of National Affairs Wages Hour Manual at Paragraph 96:1; "Child Labor Requirements in Non-agricultural Occupations" WH Publication 1330, July 1978 as may be amended), could pre-empt the Texas Statute and therefore be the controlling law on this subject. The CONTRACTOR/subcontractor should seek classification from state and federal agencies and legal counsel when hiring adolescent employees for particular job classifications.
- B. Prohibited persons not to be employed are also those persons who, at the time of employment for this Contract, are serving sentence in a penal or correctional institution, except that prior approval by the City Manager is required to employ any person participating in a supervised work release or furlough program that is sanctioned by appropriate state and federal correctional agencies.
- C. The CONTRACTOR/subcontractors shall be responsible for compliance with the provisions of the "Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986" Public Law 99-603, and any related State enabling or implementing statutes, especially as they in combination apply to the unlawful employment of aliens and unfair immigration- related employment practices affecting this Contract.

18 - PROVISIONS TO BE INCLUDED IN SUBCONTRACTS

The CONTRACTOR shall cause these Wage and Labor Standard Provisions, or reasonably similar contextual adaptations hereof, and any other appropriate state and federal labor provisions, to be inserted in all subcontracts relative to the work to bind subcontractors to the same Wage and Labor Standards as contained in these terms of the General Conditions and other contract documents insofar as applicable to the work of subcontractors or sub- tier subcontractors, and to give the CONTRACTOR similar, if not greater, general contractual authority over the subcontractor, or subtier subcontractors, as the City of Castle Hills may exercise over the CONTRACTOR.

19 - GENERAL INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR CLAUSE

This agreement does not create an employer relationship between parties. It is parties' intention that the CONTRACTOR will be an independent CONTRACTOR and not the City of Castle Hills employee for all purposes, including, but not limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum wage and overtime payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, Texas workers compensation law and Texas unemployment insurance law. The CONTRACTOR will retain sole and absolute discretion in the judgment of the manner and means of carrying out the CONTRACTOR's activities and responsibilities hereunder. The CONTRACTOR agrees that it is a separate and independent enterprise from the City of Castle Hills, that it has a full opportunity to find other business, that is has made its own investment in its business, and that it will utilize a high level of skill necessary to perform the work. This agreement shall not be construed as creating any joint employment relationship between the CONTRACTOR and the City of Castle Hills and the City of Castle Hills will not be liable for any obligation incurred by the CONTRACTOR, including, but not limited to unpaid minimum wages, and/or overtime premiums.

20 - HOT GOODS CLAUSE

The CONTRACTOR hereby certifies that the execution of the work he will perform, that he will comply with all applicable provisions of Sections 6, 7 and 12 of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, and that there will be no violations of the "hot goods" or "hot cargo" provisions of the Act involving restrictions on the use of the underage employees.

21 - PROTECTION OF LIVES AND HEALTH

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the U.S. Department of Labor Safety and Health Regulations for construction promulgated under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (Public Law 91-596 and all subsequent amendments) and under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (Public Law 91-54 and all subsequent amendments).

The CONTRACTOR shall have a competent person or persons, as required under the Occupational Safety and Health Act, on the site to inspect the work and to supervise the conformance of the CONTRACTOR's operations with the regulations of the Act.

This project is subject to all of the Safety and Health Regulations CFR 29, Part 1926 and all subsequent amendments) as promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor on June 24, 1974, and CFR 29, Part 1910 and all subsequent amendments of General Industry Safety and Health Regulations identified as applicable to construction. CONTRACTORs are urged to become familiar with the requirements of these regulations.

22 - ANTI-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT

A. The CONTRACTOR and/or any subcontractor(s), if permitted, certifies complete compliance with the Federal Civil Rights Law and the Americans with Disabilities Act, agreeing to nondiscrimination based on race, age, color, religion, disability, gender, ancestry, national origin, or place of birth.

In employment practices, programs and services shall include but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination, rates of pay or other compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.

B. The CONTRACTOR shall in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, age, color, religion, disability, gender, ancestry, national origin, or place of birth.

SECTION 8 OTHER CONDITIONS

1 - MATERIAL SUBMITTAL

The Contractor will supply three copies of submittal data for approval prior to ordering any material for the project.

2 - SCHEDULE OF WORK

At the Preconstruction Conference, the sequence of work will be proposed by the Contractor to the City and is subject to City approval. Work will be allowed from 7:30 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. No work on Saturday, Sunday, or City Holidays will be permitted, unless approved by the Director of Public Works. The contractor will not receive a notice to proceed with the work until utility and City preparation work is complete.

3 - SEQUENCE OF WORK

The Contractor shall proceed with work in a manner which completes the work in one area before advancing to another area. The Contractor may have under construction several sites so as to be efficient; however, the sequence must proceed in an orderly manner to completion. The Contractor's sequence must also include traffic flow consideration. Sequences of work which do not include orderly progression through these stages before advancing to additional work areas will not be approved.

4 - NOTIFICATION

It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to notify all property owners adjacent to the project seven (7) days prior to the starting of construction operations. This notice shall be in writing in a form acceptable to the City. Additionally, 48 hours prior to beginning work, notify the following departments: U.S. Post Office, local school districts, VIA, Fire and Police Department, and trash service.

5 - STREET CLOSING

The contractor is to properly barricade each segment of street to be worked on after giving property owners no more than 72-hour notice, but no less than 24-hour notice. Barricades will not be set before 7:30 a.m. Each street shall be opened at the end of day.

6 - BARRICADES AND FLAGMEN

The Contractor is to provide himself with necessary temporary barricades and traffic cones sufficient to alert the traffic in advance. If the present lanes of traffic are to be closed, suitable barricades, warning signs and markers are to be provided by the Contractor. Unless otherwise approved by the City, barricades for this work shall be provided by a barricade company familiar with the requirements of TMUTCD.

Barricades and traffic control devices including advance warning signs etc, shall follow the Texas Uniform Municipal Control Devices standards to the satisfaction of the City must be utilized. The City has the right to prevent work from starting until suitable traffic control devices are provided, in the opinion of the City. Included advance warning signs.

The City may direct the Contractor to provide additional traffic control devices and/or flagmen as they deem necessary to protect the public. All barricades will have one flashing light at night. All cost for traffic management and barricades will be included in the cost of the work.

7 - WATER FOR CONSTRUCTION

All water required by the Contractor for his operations will be available without charge at the City Public Works yard. The Contractor shall make all necessary connections and shall transport all water at his own expense. If needed, the Contractor will be required to pay a deposit for a fire hydrant meter, which deposit will be returned when the fire hydrant meter is returned in good condition.

8 - BID QUANTITIES

The Owner may elect to increase or decrease the amount of work units authorized to be completed as much as 25% without affecting the unit price of the project. The Contractor agrees that the final contract amount will be computed by extension of these unit prices and the quantity of work authorized and accepted by the Owner.

9 - UTILITY AND SIGN ADJUSTMENT

The Contractor is required to make all arrangements and coordinate with the various utility companies for preserving and adjusting the various valves and manholes on the project. The City of Castle Hills shall adjust all water valves and sewer manholes. Those valves and manholes which do not belong to the City of Castle Hills will be adjusted by the utility owner. In every case, the contractor shall protect these utilities from being damaged.

10 - WATER VALVE COVERS, MANHOLES, AND STREET REFLECTORS

The Contractor shall protect existing water valve covers, manhole lids, and street reflectors from being coated by work. Before completion of the work, the contractor shall remove any material placed over these facilities.

11 - INSPECTION

This work will be inspected by the City and all change orders or communication concerning the work shall be directed to the City.

12 - DAMAGE TO EXISTING STREETS

The asphalt pavement, curbs and existing sidewalks in the work area are considered to be in good to excellent condition prior to start of the project.

Any scars, nicks, gasoline, oil, etc., or other defacement or damage to the existing streets, curbs or sidewalks will be a responsibility of the contractor to repair.

Before beginning the job, the contractor may point out and note to the inspector any specific areas that are already damaged. Thereafter, the contractor will not be held responsible for repairs to these areas.

13 - CONDITION OF THE SITE

Site of the proposed work will be pointed out to the prospective bidders by the City Public Works Director. The Contractor shall provide his own material and equipment yard at his cost. Upon completion of the work, all excess materials shall be removed from the site by the Contractor and the area around the work shall be returned to its original condition. Disposal sites will be a responsibility of the Contractor.

14 - PROTECTION OF WORK, PROPERTY AND PERSONS

The Contractor shall, at all times, safely guard the Owner's property from injury or loss in connection with this Contract. He shall at all times safely guard and protect his own work and that of adjacent property from damage. The Contractor shall replace or make good any such damage, loss or injury unless such is caused directly by errors contained in the Contract, or by the Owner or his duly authorized representatives.

The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of employees on the work and shall comply with all applicable provisions of Federal, State and Municipal safety laws and building codes to prevent accidents or injury to persons on, about or adjacent to the premises where the work is being performed. He shall erect and properly maintain at all times, as required by the conditions and progress of the work, all necessary safeguards for the protection of workmen and the public, and shall post danger signs warning against the hazards created by such features of construction as protruding nails, hoists, well holes, elevator hatchways, scaffolding, window openings, stairways, trenches and other excavations, and falling materials, and he shall designate a responsible member of his organization on the work site whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. The name and position of any person so designated shall be reported to the Owner by the Contractor. The person so designated shall be available by phone during non-working hours.

In case of an emergency which threatens loss or injury of property and/or safety of life, the Contractor will be allowed to act without previous instructions from the Owner in a diligent manner. He shall notify the Owner immediately thereafter.

15 - CARE AND PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

The Contractor expressly undertakes at his own expense: To assume full responsibility for the preservation of all public and private property and use every precaution necessary to prevent damage thereto. If any direct or indirect damage is done to public or private property by or on account of any act, omission, neglect or misconduct in the execution of the work on the part of the Contractor, such property shall be restored by the Contractor, at his expense, to a condition similar to or equal to that existing before the damage was done, or he shall make good the damage in another manner acceptable to the Owner. No representations are made concerning the conditions, locations or state of repair of existing sewers, drains, water mains and other underground structures;

To store his apparatus, materials, supplies and equipment in such orderly fashion at the site of the work as will not unduly interfere with the progress of his work or the work of any other contractor;

To provide suitable storage facilities for all materials which are liable to injury by exposure to weather, theft, and breakage or otherwise;

To place upon the work, or any part thereof, only such loads as are consistent with safety of that portion of the work;

To clean up frequently all refuse, rubbish, scrap materials and debris caused by his operations to the end that at all times the site of the work shall present a neat, orderly and workmanlike appearance;

To remove all surplus material, false work, temporary structures, including foundations thereof, plant of any description and debris of every nature resulting from his operations and to put the site in a neat, orderly condition before final payment; to effect all cutting, fitting or patching of his work required to make the same conform to the plans and specifications and, except with the consent of the Owner, not to cut or otherwise alter the work of any other contractor.

The Contractor shall not, except after written consent from proper parties, enter or occupy with men, tools, materials or equipment, any privately owned land except on easements provided herein.

16 - PROTECTION OF LIVES AND HEALTH

The Contractor shall comply with the U.S. Department of Labor Safety and Health Regulations for construction promulgated under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (Public Law 91 - 596 and all subsequent amendments) and under Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (Public Law 91-54 and all subsequent amendments).

The Contractor shall have a competent person or persons, as required under the Occupational Safety and Health Act, on the site to inspect the work and to supervise the conformance of the Contractor's operations with the regulations of the Act. This project is subject to all of the Safety and Health Regulations (CFR 29, Part 1926 and all subsequent amendments) as promulgated by the U.S. Department of Labor on June 24, 1974, and CFR 29, Part 1910 and all subsequent amendments of General Industry Safety and Health Regulations identified as applicable to construction. Contractors are urged to become familiar with the requirements of these regulations.

17 - PROJECT CONSTRUCTION SITE

The contractor shall provide his own temporary yard for stock pile of materials and storage of vehicle. City property may not be available for this purpose.

ATTACHMENT A PREVAILING WAGES

"General Decision Number: TX20240007 01/05/2024

Superseded General Decision Number: TX20230007

State: Texas

Construction Types: Heavy and Highway

Counties: Atascosa, Bandera, Bastrop, Bell, Bexar, Brazos, Burleson, Caldwell, Comal, Coryell, Guadalupe, Hays, Kendall, Lampasas, McLennan, Medina, Robertson, Travis, Williamson and Wilson Counties in Texas.

HEAVY (excluding tunnels and dams, not to be used for work on Sewage or Water Treatment Plants or Lift / Pump Stations in Bell, Coryell, McClennon and Williamson Counties) and HIGHWAY Construction Projects

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658. Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(1).

| If the contract is entered into on or after January 30, 2022, or the contract is renewed or extended (e.g., an option is exercised) on or after January 30, 2022: | Executive Order 14026 generally applies to the contract. The contractor must pay all covered workers at least \$17.20 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in 2024. |
|---|--|
| If the contract was awarded on or between January 1, 2015 and January 29, 2022 and the contract is not renewed or extended on or after January 30, 2022: | Executive Order 13658 generally applies to the contract. The contractor must pay all covered workers at least \$12.90 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing that contract in 2024. |

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must still submit a conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the Executive Orders is available at http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

| Modification Number | Publication Date | |
|-------------------------------------|------------------|---------|
| 0 | 1/5/2024 | |
| * SUTX2011-006 08/03/2011 | | |
| 5.61742011 000 00/05/2011 | Rates | Fringes |
| CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER | | S |
| (Paving and Structures) | \$12.56** | 0 |
| ELECTRICIAN | \$26.35 | 0 |
| EBBerraenn | Ψ20.00 | Ü |
| FORM BUILDER/FORM SETTER | | |
| Paving & Curb | \$12.94** | 0 |
| Structures | \$12.87** | 0 |
| | ψ1 2. 0 / | Ů |
| LABORER | | |
| Asphalt Raker | \$12.12** | 0 |
| Flagger | \$9.45** | 0 |
| Laborer, Common | \$10.5** | 0 |
| Laborer, Utility | \$12.27** | 0 |
| Pipelayer | \$12.79** | 0 |
| Work Zone Barricade Servicer | \$11.85** | 0 |
| | | |
| PAINTER (Structures) | \$18.34 | 0 |
| POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR: | | |
| Agricultural Tractor | \$12.69** | 0 |
| Asphalt Distributor | \$15.55** | 0 |
| Asphalt Paving Machine | \$14.36** | 0 |
| Boom Truck | \$18.36 | 0 |
| Broom or Sweeper | \$11.04** | 0 |
| Concrete Pavement Fishing Machine | \$15.48** | 0 |
| Crane, Hydraulic 80 tons or less | \$18.36 | 0 |
| Crane, Lattice Boom 80 tons or less | \$15.87** | 0 |
| Crane, Lattice Boom over 80 tons | \$19.38 | 0 |
| Crawler Tractor | \$15.67** | 0 |
| Directional Drilling Locator | \$11.67** | 0 |
| Directional Drilling Operator | \$17.24 | 0 |
| Excavator 50,000 lbs or Less | \$12.88** | 0 |
| Excavator over 50,000 lbs | \$17.71 | 0 |
| Foundation Drill, Truck Mounted | \$16.93** | 0 |
| Front End Loader, 3 CY or Less | \$13.04** | 0 |
| Front End Loader, Over 3 CY | \$13.21** | 0 |
| Loader/Backhoe.12 | \$14.12** | 0 |
| Mechanic | \$17.1** | 0 |
| Milling Machine | \$14.18** | 0 |
| Motor Grader, Fine Grade | \$18.51 | 0 |
| Motor Grader, Rough | \$14.63** | 0 |

| Reclaimer/Pulverizer \$12.88** 0 Roller, Asphalt \$12.78** 0 Roller, Other \$10.5** 0 Scraper \$12.27** 0 Spreader Box \$14.04** 0 Trenching Machine, Heavy \$18.48 0 Servicer \$14.51** 0 Steel Worker Reinforcing \$14** 0 Structural \$19.29 0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float \$15.66** 0 Off Road Hauler \$11.88** 0 Single Axle \$11.79** 0 Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 WELDER \$15.97** 0 | Pavement Marking Machine | \$19.17 | 0 |
|---|----------------------------------|-----------|---|
| Roller, Other \$10.5** 0 Scraper \$12.27** 0 Spreader Box \$14.04** 0 Trenching Machine, Heavy \$18.48 0 Servicer \$14.51** 0 Steel Worker Reinforcing \$14** 0 Structural \$19.29 0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER \$10.00 \$10.00 | Reclaimer/Pulverizer | \$12.88** | 0 |
| Scraper \$12.27** 0 Spreader Box \$14.04** 0 Trenching Machine, Heavy \$18.48 0 Servicer \$14.51** 0 Steel Worker Reinforcing \$14** 0 Structural \$19.29 0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER \$10.00 | Roller, Asphalt | \$12.78** | 0 |
| Spreader Box \$14.04** 0 Trenching Machine, Heavy \$18.48 0 Servicer \$14.51** 0 Steel Worker Reinforcing \$14** 0 Structural \$19.29 0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float \$15.66** 0 Off Road Hauler \$11.88** 0 Single Axle \$11.79** 0 Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | Roller, Other | \$10.5** | 0 |
| Trenching Machine, Heavy \$18.48 0 Servicer \$14.51** 0 Steel Worker \$14** 0 Reinforcing \$14** 0 Structural \$19.29 0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER \$16** 0 Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER \$10** 0 Lowboy-Float \$15.66** 0 Off Road Hauler \$11.88** 0 Single Axle \$11.79** 0 Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | Scraper | \$12.27** | 0 |
| Servicer \$14.51** 0 Steel Worker Reinforcing \$14** 0 Structural \$19.29 0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float \$15.66** 0 Off Road Hauler \$11.88** 0 Single Axle \$11.79** 0 Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | Spreader Box | \$14.04** | 0 |
| Steel Worker Reinforcing \$14** 0 Structural \$19.29 0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float \$15.66** 0 Off Road Hauler \$11.88** 0 Single Axle \$11.79** 0 Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | Trenching Machine, Heavy | \$18.48 | 0 |
| Reinforcing \$14** 0 Structural \$19.29 0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float \$15.66** 0 Off Road Hauler \$11.88** 0 Single Axle \$11.79** 0 Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | Servicer | \$14.51** | 0 |
| Structural \$19.29 0 TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float \$15.66** 0 Off Road Hauler \$11.88** 0 Single Axle \$11.79** 0 Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | Steel Worker | | |
| TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float Off Road Hauler Single Axle Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$16** \$16** 0 \$15.66** \$11.88** 0 \$11.79** \$12.81** 0 | Reinforcing | \$14** | 0 |
| Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker \$16** 0 TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float \$15.66** 0 Off Road Hauler \$11.88** 0 Single Axle \$11.79** 0 Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | Structural | \$19.29 | 0 |
| TRUCK DRIVER Lowboy-Float \$15.66** 0 Off Road Hauler \$11.88** 0 Single Axle \$11.79** 0 Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALLER | | |
| Lowboy-Float\$15.66**0Off Road Hauler\$11.88**0Single Axle\$11.79**0Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck\$11.68**0Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer\$12.81**0 | Traffic Signal/Light Pole Worker | \$16** | 0 |
| Off Road Hauler\$11.88**0Single Axle\$11.79**0Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck\$11.68**0Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer\$12.81**0 | TRUCK DRIVER | | |
| Off Road Hauler\$11.88**0Single Axle\$11.79**0Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck\$11.68**0Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer\$12.81**0 | Lowboy-Float | \$15.66** | 0 |
| Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | | | 0 |
| Single or Tandem Axle Dump Truck \$11.68** 0 Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | Single Axle | \$11.79** | 0 |
| Tandem Axle Tractor w/Semi Trailer \$12.81** 0 | _ | \$11.68** | 0 |
| WELDER \$15.97** 0 | - | | 0 |
| | WELDER | \$15.97** | 0 |

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

** Workers in this classification may be entitled to a higher minimum wage under Executive Order 14026 (\$17.20) or 13658 (\$12.90). Please see the Note at the top of the wage determination for more information. Please also note that the minimum wage requirements of Executive Order 14026 are not currently being enforced as to any contract or subcontract to which the states of Texas, Louisiana, or Mississippi, including their agencies, are a party.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year.

Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at

https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (iii)).

.....

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or ""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example: PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number,

0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

- 1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:
- * an existing published wage determination
- * a survey underlying a wage determination
- * a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- * a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour National Office because National Office has responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations Wage and Hour Division U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION"

ATTACHMENT B BID FORM

PROJECT IDENTIFICATION:

City of Castle Hills

COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS

THIS BID IS SUBMITTED TO:

City of Castle Hills Nichole Heinrich, City Secretary 209 Lemonwood Castle Hills, TX 78213

- 1.1 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement with OWNER in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.
- 2.1 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid and Instructions to Bidders, including without limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. The Bid will remain subject to acceptance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may agree to in writing upon request of OWNER.
- 3.1 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents, as set forth in the Agreement, that:
 - A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, the other related data identified in the Bidding Documents, and the following Addenda, receipt of all which is hereby acknowledged.

| Addendum No. | Addendum Date |
|--------------|---------------|
| | |
| | |
| | |

- B. Bidder has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
- C. Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress and performance of the Work.
- D. Bidder has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the Site (except Underground Facilities) which have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in the General Conditions, and (2) reports

and drawings of a Hazardous Environmental Condition, if any, which has been identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in the General Conditions.

- E. Bidder has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having done so) all additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect cost, progress, or performance of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Bidder, including applying the specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction expressly required by the Bidding Documents to be employed by Bidder, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.
- F. Bidder does not consider that any further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price(s) bid and within the times and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.
- G. Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by OWNER and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Bidding Documents.
- H. Bidder has correlated the information known to Bidder, information and observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the Bidding Documents, and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data with the Bidding Documents.
- I. Bidder has given OWNER written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that Bidder has discovered in the Bidding Documents, and the written resolution thereof by OWNER is acceptable to Bidder.
- J. The Bidding Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for the performance of the Work for which this Bid is submitted.
- 4.1 Bidder further represents that this Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of any group, association, organization or corporation; Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a false or sham Bid; Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and Bidder has not sought by collusion to obtain for itself any advantage over any other Bidder or over OWNER.
- 5.1 Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the prices outlined in the UNIT PRICE BID ITEMS section below.
- 6.1 Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially completed and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with the General Conditions within on or before the dates or within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreement.
- 6.2 Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to liquidated damages in the event of failure to complete the Work within the times specified above, which shall be stated in the Agreement.
- 7.1 The following documents are attached to and made a condition of this Bid:

- A. Required Bid Bond;
- B. Required bidder qualifications statement with supporting data.
- C. Evidence of Workers Compensation Insurance

| 8.1 The terms used in this Bid with initial Instructions to Bidders, the General Condition | | | | |
|--|-----------------------------|--------------|-------------|----|
| SUBMITTED on | , 2024. | | | |
| State Contractor License No. Bidder is: | | <u>.</u> (If | applicable) | If |
| An Individual | | | | |
| Name (typed or clearly printed): | | | | _ |
| By:(Individual's signature) | | - | (SEAL) | |
| Doing business as: | | | | |
| Business address: | | | | |
| Phone No.: | FAX No.: | | | _ |
| A Partnership | | | | |
| Partnership Name: | | | (SEAL) | |
| By:(Signature of general partner attach evid | | | | _ |
| (Signature of general partner attach evid | dence of authority to sign) | | | |
| Name (typed or clearly printed): | | | | |
| Business address: | | | | _ |
| Phone No.: | FAX No.: | | | |
| A Corporation | | | | |
| Corporation Name: | | | (SEAL) | |
| State of Incorporation: | | | | |
| Type (General Business, Professional, Service | e, Limited Liability): | | | |
| By:(Signature attach evidence of authority | to sign) | | | |

| Name (typed or clearly printed): | |
|--|-----------------------------|
| Title:(CORPORATE SEAL) | |
| Attest Cignature of Corporate Secretary) | |
| Business address: | |
| Phone No.:FA | |
| Date of Qualification to do business is | |
| A Joint Venture | |
| Joint Venturer Name: | (SEAL) |
| By:(Signature of joint venture partner attach evidence | e of authority to sign) |
| Name (typed or clearly printed): | |
| Title: | |
| Business address: | |
| Phone No.: FA | X No.: |
| Joint Venturer Name: | (SEAL) |
| By:(Signature attach evidence of authority to sign) | |
| Name (typed or clearly printed): | |
| Title: | |
| Business address: | |
| Phone No.: FA | X No.: |
| Phone, Fax number, email, and mail address for receipt | of official communications: |
| | |

(Each joint venturer must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership, and corporation that is a party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.)

UNIT PRICE BID ITEMS

COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS

| _ | | BASE I | BID | | | | |
|-------------------|-----------------|-----------|---------|----------|------------|----------------|-----|
| Amounts are to be | shown in both | words and | numeric | figures. | In case of | f discrepancy, | the |
| amount shown in w | vords will gove | ern. | | | | | |

| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE | | |
|------------------------|----------------------------|-----|-------|------------|-------|-------|--|--|
| 100.1 | MOBILIZATION | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | | | |
| Price/LS dollars | | | | | | _ | | |
| T . 1D | andcents | | | | | | | |
| Total Price dollars | | | | | | _ | | |
| | and | | cents | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE | | |
| 101.1 | PREPARING RIGHT- OF-WAY | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | | | |
| Price/LS dollars | | | | | | _ | | |
| | and | | cents | | | | | |
| Total Price dollars | | | | | | - | | |
| | and | | cents | | | | | |

| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE | | | | |
|---------------------|--------------------------------------|-----|-------|------------|-------|-------|--|--|--|--|
| | TREE PROTECTION | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | | | | | |
| Price/CY dollars | | , | | | | | | | | |
| | andcents | | | | | | | | | |
| Total Price dollars | | | | | | | | | | |
| | and | | cents | | | | | | | |
| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE | | | | |
| | PAVILION FOOTINGS / FOUNDATION | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | | | | | |
| Price/CY dollars | | | | | | | | | | |
| | and | | cents | | | | | | | |
| Total Price dollars | | | | | | | | | | |
| | and | | cents | | | | | | | |
| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE | | | | |
| 502.1 SIDEWA | CONCRETE LK (COMPLETE) | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | | | | | |
| Price/SY dollars | | | | | | | | | | |
| | and | | cents | | | | | | | |
| Total Price dollars | | | | | | | | | | |
| | and | | cents | | | | | | | |

| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL PRICE |
|----------|--------------------------------------|-----|-------|------------|-------------|
| | SCULPTURE PEDESTALS (COMPLETE) | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ |
| Price/SV | | | | | |

| Price/SY dollars | | | |
|------------------------|-----|-------|--|
| | and | cents | |
| Total Price dollars | | | |
| | and | cents | |

| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL PRICE |
|----------|-----------------|-----|-------|------------|-------------|
| | CONCRETE PAVERS | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ |
| Price/SY | | | | | |

| Price/SY dollars | | | | |
|---------------------|-----|-------|----------|--|
| | and | cents | | |
| Total Price dollars | | | | |
| | and | cents | , | |

| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL PRICE |
|------|--|-----|-------|------------|-------------|
| | ERECTING / FABRICATING TWO (2) PAVILIONS | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ |

| dollars | | | | | | _ |
|---------------------|---|-----|-------|------------|-------|-------|
| | and | | cents | F | | |
| Total Price dollars | | | | | | _ |
| | and | | cents | | | |
| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE |
| | MASONRY WRAPS FOR PAVILION COLUMNS (complete) | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | |
| Price/LF dollars | | | | | | _ |
| | and | | cents | | | |
| Total Price dollars | | | | | | _ |
| | and | | cents | ı | | |
| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE |
| 513.1 | ELECTRICAL (COMPLETE) | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | |
| Price/EA dollars | | | | | | _ |
| | and | | cents | • | | |
| Total Price dollars | | | | | | _ |
| | and | | cents | | | |

| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL PRICE |
|-------|-------------|-----|-------|------------|-------------|
| 515.1 | TOPSOIL | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ |

| Price/CY dollars | | |
|------------------------|-----|-------|
| | and | cents |
| Total Price dollars | | |
| | and | cents |

| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL PRICE |
|---------------------|-----------------|-----|-------|------------|-------------|
| 516.1 | BERMUDA SODDING | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ |
| Price/SY dollars | | | | | |

Price/SY dollars

and _____ cents

Total Price dollars

and _____ cents

| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE |
|------------------------|--|-----|-------|------------|-------|-------|
| 540.6 | CONSTRUCTION EXITS (INSTALL) | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | |
| rice/LF ollars | | | , | | | |
| | and | | cents | | | |
| otal Price ollars | | | | | | |
| | and | | cents | ı | | |
| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE |
| 540.6 | CONSTRUCTION EXITS (REMOVE) | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | |
| rice/LF ollars | | | | | | |
| 15 | and | | | | | |
| Total Price Iollars | | | | | | |
| | and | | cents | | | |
| ITEM | DESCRIPTION | QTY | UNITS | UNIT PRICE | TOTAL | PRICE |
| 540.9 | TEMPORARY SEDIMENT CONTROL FENCE | 1 | LS | \$ | \$ | |
| Price/LF lollars | | | | | | |
| | and | | cents | | | |
| otal Price | | | | | | |

and _____cents

| discrepancy, the amount shown in words will govern. | | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| otal Project Base Bid: | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| Pollars | | | | | |

cents

Total Project Base Bid to be shown in both words and numeric figures. In case of

ATTACHMENTC BID BOND

| BIDDER (Name and Address): | | | | | |
|---|-----------|--|--|--|--|
| | | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place of Business): | | | | | |
| | _ | | | | |
| | | | | | |
| OWNER (Name and Address): | | | | | |
| City of Castle Hills 209 Lemonwood Castle Hills, TX 78213 | | | | | |
| BID | | | | | |
| BID DUE DATE: 2:00 P.M., January 9, 2025 | | | | | |
| City of Castle Hills | | | | | |
| COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS | | | | | |
| BOND | | | | | |
| BOND AMOUNT: 5% of the total bid price. | | | | | |
| BOND NUMBER: | | | | | |
| DATE (not later than Bid due date): | | | | | |
| PENAL SUM: | | | | | |
| (Words) | (Figures) | | | | |

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms printed on the reverse side hereof, do each cause this Bid Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by its authorized officer, agent, or representative.

| (SEAL) | (SEAL) |
|----------------------------------|----------------------------------|
| Bidder's Name and Corporate Seal | Surety's Name and Corporate Seal |
| By: | By: |
| Signature and Title | Signature and Title |
| | (Attach Power of Attorney) |
| Attest: | Attest: |
| Signature and Title | Signature and Title |

- Note: (1) Above addresses are to be used for giving required notice.
 - (2) Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, OWNER or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.
- 1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns to pay to OWNER upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond.
- 2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by OWNER) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding Documents and any performance and payment Bonds required by the Bidding Documents.
- 3. This obligation shall be null and void if:
 - 3.1 OWNER accepts Bidder's Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by OWNER) the executed Agreement required by the Bidding Documents and any performance and payment Bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or
 - 3.2 All Bids are rejected by OWNER, or
 - 3.3 OWNER fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when required).
- 4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default by Bidder and within 30 calendar days after receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from OWNER, which notice will be given with reasonable promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.
- 5. Surety waives notice of and any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice of Award agreed to in writing by OWNER and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award including extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from Bid due date without Surety's written consent.

107

- 6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of default required above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after Bid due date.
- 7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in the state in which the Project is located.
- 8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shown on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier or by United States Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective upon receipt by the party concerned.
- 9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power or Attorney evidencing the authority of the officer, agent or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal and deliver such Bond and bind the Surety thereby.
- 10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of any applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth at length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shall govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.
- 11. The term "Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer or proposal as applicable.

ATTACHMENT D STANDARD FORM OF AGREEMENT

BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR ON THE BASIS OF A STIPULATED PRICE

THIS <u>AGREEMENT</u> is by and between the City of Castle Hills (hereinafter called OWNER) and (hereinafter called CONTRACTOR).

OWNER and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:

1 - WORK

1.1 CONTRACTOR shall complete all work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is generally described as follows: **COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS**

2 - THE PROJECT

2.1 The Project for which the Work under the Contract Documents may be the whole or only a part is generally described as follows:

The city is proposing the following:

Fabricate two (2) pavilions within Commons Park. The pavilions will include lighting/electrical and masonry (stone) wraps around each column, for a total of eight (8) columns. Concrete paving is being proposed for the pavilion base/foundations. The east and west ends of the concrete paving will also include concrete paver insets for a future "donor walk/plaza". In addition, the project proposes seven (7) concrete "sculpture pedestals" for future art displays. Each pedestal will include an electrical outlet. Minor grading/drainage improvements will be necessary to divert water away from the proposed pavilions and concrete paving. Sod will be required at all disturbed areas, and contractor will be responsible for watering until grass is established.

Pavilions are being provided by City of Castle Hills. However, Contractor responsible for erection/installation of pavilions.

3 - OWNER

3.1 The Project has been designed by OWNER.

4 - CONTRACT TIMES

4.1 Time is of the Essence

All time limits for Substantial Completion and completion, and readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.

4.2 Dates for Substantial Completion and Final Payment

The Overall Bid Work will be substantially completed within 45 calendar days after issuance of

a Notice to Proceed and completed and ready for final payment within **60 calendar days** after the issuance of a Notice to Proceed.

5 - CONTRACT PRICE

- 5.1 OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents an amount in current funds equal to the sum of the amounts determined below:
 - A. For all Work, at the prices stated in CONTRACTOR's Bid, for the alternatives or base bid indicated in the Notice of Award.
 - B. As provided in the General Conditions, estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and determinations of actual quantities and classifications are to be made by CONTRACTOR as provided in the General Conditions. Unit prices have been computed as provided in the General Conditions.
 - C. STATEMENT OF MATERIALS AND OTHER CHARGES: For the purposes of complying with the Texas Tax Code, this contract shall be a separate contract. Separate prices for materials and services shall be provided by the CONTRACTOR upon award as provided.
 - D. The OWNER shall pay the CONTRACTOR for the proper performance of the contract, subject to additions and deductions provided herein.
 - E. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and understands that this is a "separate contract" pursuant to recently enacted legislation contained in Texas Administrative Code Title 34, I, 3, O, paragraph 3.291. The following amount of money represents that part of the total contract price representative of the value of tangible personal property to be physically incorporated into the project reality:

6 - PAYMENT PROCEDURES

6.1 Submittal and Processing of Payments

CONTRACTOR shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with the General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by OWNER as provided in the General Conditions.

- 6.2 Progress Payments; Retainage
 - A. OWNER shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of CONTRACTOR's Applications for Payment on or about the 20th day of each month during performance of the Work as provided below. All such payments will be measured by the schedule of values established in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as provided in the General Requirements:

- B. The amount of the payment due the CONTRACTOR shall be determined by adding the total value of work completed to date and deducting of:
 - 1. Five percent (5%) of the total amount, to be retained by the OWNER until the final payment, and
 - 2. The amount of all previous payments.

The total value of work completed to date shall be based on the estimated quantities of work completed and on the unit prices contained in the agreement. The estimate may include the value of materials delivered on the ground but not incorporated into the work.

- C. Monthly or partial payments made by OWNER to CONTRACTOR are monies for the purpose of assisting CONTRACTOR to expedite the work of construction. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the care and protection of all material and work upon which payments have been made until final acceptance of such work and materials by the OWNER. Such payments shall not constitute a waiver of the right of the OWNER to require the fulfillment of all terms of the agreement and the delivery of all improvements embraced in the agreement, complete and satisfactory to the OWNER in all details.
- D. No payment application except the final request will be made for a sum less than Five Hundred Dollars (\$500). It is understood that all payment applications are approximate only and payment shall be subject to correction in subsequent payment applications if any error is discerned.
- E. Contractor shall provide a completed IRS form W-9 to the City **BEFORE** any payment is made. The completed W-9 may be submitted in person or may be emailed to the City Secretary at nheinrich@castlehills-tx.gov with "W-9 from (insert vendor name) for 2021 Street Improvements". Once the contract is awarded by Council, you may submit your W-9 immediately. Failure to submit a completed W-9 will delay payment. A blank W-9 is available here: https://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf.

6.3 Final Payment

Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work, OWNER shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as provided.

7 - INTEREST

7.1 All moneys not paid when due as provided in the General Conditions shall bear interest at the rate of 0% per annum.

8 - CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS

- 8.1 In order to induce OWNER to enter into this Agreement CONTRACTOR makes the following representations:
 - A. CONTRACTOR has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and the other related data identified in the Bidding Documents.

- B. CONTRACTOR has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work
- C. CONTRACTOR is familiar with and is satisfied as to all federal, state, and local Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
- D. CONTRACTOR has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at or contiguous to the Site (except

Underground Facilities) which have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in the General Conditions and (2) reports and drawings of a Hazardous Environmental Condition, if any, at the Site which has been identified in the Supplementary Conditions as provided in the General Conditions.

- E. CONTRACTOR has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for having done so) all additional or supplementary examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data concerning conditions (surface, subsurface, and Underground Facilities) at or contiguous to the Site which may affect cost, progress, or performance of the Work or which relate to any aspect of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by CONTRACTOR, including applying the specific means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, if any, expressly required by the Contract Documents to be employed by CONTRACTOR, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.
- F. CONTRACTOR does not consider that any further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents.
- G. CONTRACTOR is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by OWNER and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.
- H. CONTRACTOR has correlated the information known to CONTRACTOR, information and observations obtained from visits to the Site, reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, and all additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, and data with the Contract Documents.
- I. CONTRACTOR has given OWNER written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that CONTRACTOR has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by OWNER is acceptable to CONTRACTOR.
- J. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.
- K. For the purpose of complying with the Texas Tax Code, this contract shall be a separate contract. The OWNER shall pay the CONTRACTOR for the proper performance of

the contract, subject to additions and deductions therein, the contract sum as provided on the Bid Form.

9 - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- 9.1 Contents
 - A. The Contract Documents consist of the following:
 - 1. Instruction to Bidders
 - 2. Bid Bonds
 - 3. This Agreement
 - 4. Performance Bond
 - 5. Payment Bond
 - 6. General Conditions
 - 7. Supplementary Conditions
 - 8. Special Supplementary Conditions
 - 9. Special Conditions
 - 10. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual 11.

Addenda (numbers

to

, inclusive)

- 12. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows):
 - a. Notice to Proceed
 - b. CONTRACTOR's Bid;
 - c. Documentation submitted by CONTRACTOR prior to Notice of Award;
 - i. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement and are not attached hereto:
 - a. Written Amendments;
 - b. Work Change Directives;
 - c. Change Order(s).
 - ii. The documents listed are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly noted otherwise above).
 - iii. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed

above.

The Contract Documents amended, iv. may only be modified, or supplemented provided in the General as Conditions.

10 - MISCELLANEOUS

- 10.1 *Terms* Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings indicated in the General Conditions.
- 10.2 Assignment of Contract No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

10.3 Successors and Assigns:

OWNER and CONTRACTOR each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

10.4 *Severability*

Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon OWNER and CONTRACTOR, who agree that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, OWNER and CONTRACTOR have signed this Agreement in duplicate. One counterpart each has been delivered to OWNER and CONTRACTOR. All portions of the Contract Documents have been signed or identified by OWNER and CONTRACTOR or on their behalf.

| This Agreement will be effective on Agreement). | (which is the Effective Date of the | |
|---|-------------------------------------|--|
| OWNER: City of Castle Hills | CONTRACTOR: | |
| By: | By: | |
| [CORPORATE SEAL] | [CORPORATE SEAL] | |
| Attest | Attest | |
| Address for giving notices: | Address for giving notices: | |
| City of Castle Hills | | |
| 209 Lemonwood | | |
| Castle Hills, Texas 78213 | | |
| Designated Representative: | Designated Representative: | |
| Name: | Name: | |
| Title: City Manager | Title: | |
| Address: 209 Lemonwood | Address: | |
| Castle Hills, Texas 78213 | _ | |
| Phone: (210)-342-2341 | Phone: | |

ATTACHMENT E NOTICE TO PROCEED

| Date: |
|--|
| TO: |
| (CONTRACTOR) |
| ADDRESS: |
| |
| |
| Contract: COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS |
| Project: COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS |
| You are notified that the Contract Times under the above contract will commence to run on By that date, you are to start performing your obligations under the Contract Documents. In accordance with the Agreement the date of Substantial Completion |
| and the date of readiness for final payment is Before starting and Work at the Site, the General Conditions provides that you and Owner must each deliver to the other certificat of insurance which each is required to purchase and maintain in accordance with the Contract Document Also, before you may start any Work at the Site, you must: |
| Attend Preconstruction Conference and give Owner actual notice of start. Provide new Insurance certificate prior to expiration of current insurance. |
| City of Castle Hills |
| By: |
| (AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE) |
| Title: City Manager |

ATTACHMENT F PERFORMANCE BOND

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place of Business):

OWNER (Name and Address):

City of Castle Hills 209 Lemonwood Castle Hills, Texas 78213 (210) 342-2341

DESCRIPTION (Name and Location):

COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS

CONTRACT

Date:

Amount:

BOND

Bond Amount: 100%

Date (Not earlier than Contract Date):

Amount:

Modifications to this Bond Form:

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms printed on the reverse side hereof, do each cause this Performance Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by its authorized officer, agent or representative.

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL (Corp. Seal) SURETY (Corp. Seal)

Company: Company: Signature: Signature: Name and Title: Name and Title:

(Attach Power of Attorney) (Attach Power of Attorney)

(Space is provided below for signatures of additional parties, if required.)

- 1. The CONTRACTOR and the Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns to the Owner for the performance of the Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.
- 2. If the CONTRACTOR performs the Contract, the Surety and the CONTRACTOR have no obligation under this Bond, except to participate in conferences.
- 3. If there is no OWNER Default, the Surety's obligation under this Bond shall arise after:
 - 3.1. The OWNER has notified the CONTRACTOR and the Surety at the addresses described below, that the OWNER is considering declaring a CONTRACTOR Default and has requested and attempted to arrange a conference with the CONTRACTOR and the Surety to be held not later than fifteen days after receipt of such notice to discuss methods of performing the Contract. If the OWNER, the CONTRACTOR and the Surety agree, the CONTRACTOR shall be allowed a reasonable time to perform the Contract, but such an agreement shall not waive the OWNER's right, if any, subsequently to declare a CONTRACTOR Default; and
 - 3.2. The OWNER has declared a CONTRACTOR Default and formally terminated the CONTRACTOR's right to complete the Contract. Such CONTRACTOR Default shall not be declared earlier than twenty days after the CONTRACTOR and the Surety have received notice as provided; and
 - 3.3. The OWNER has agreed to pay the Balance of the Contract Price to:
 - 3.3.1. The Surety in accordance with the terms of the Contract;
 - 3.3.2 Another contractor selected to perform the Contract.
- 4. When the OWNER has satisfied the conditions, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take one of the following actions:
 - 4.1. Arrange for the CONTRACTOR, with consent of the OWNER, to perform and complete the Contract; or
 - 4.2. Undertake to perform and complete the Contract itself, through its agents or through independent contractors; or
 - 4.3. Obtain bids or negotiated proposals from qualified contractors acceptable to the OWNER for a contract for performance and completion of the Contract, arrange for a contract to be prepared for execution by the OWNER and the contractor selected with the OWNER's concurrence, to be secured with performance and payment bonds executed by a qualified surety equivalent to the Bonds issued on the Contract, and pay to the OWNER the amount of damages as described in excess of the Balance of the Contract Price incurred by the OWNER resulting from the CONTRACTOR Default; or
 - 4.4. Waive its right to perform and complete, arrange for completion, or obtain a new contractor and with reasonable promptness under the circumstances;
 - 4.4.1 After investigation, determine the amount for which it may be liable to the OWNER and, as soon as practicable after the amount is determined, tender payment therefor to the OWNER; or

- 4.4.2 Deny liability in whole or in part and notify the OWNER citing reasons therefor.
- 5. If the Surety does not proceed as provided with reasonable promptness, the Surety shall be deemed to be in default on this Bond fifteen days after receipt of an additional written notice from the OWNER to the Surety demanding that the Surety perform its obligations under this Bond, and the OWNER shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the OWNER. If the Surety proceeds as provided and the OWNER refuses the payment tendered or the Surety has denied liability, in whole or in part, without further notice the OWNER shall be entitled to enforce any remedy available to the OWNER.
- 6. After the OWNER has terminated the CONTRACTOR's right to complete the Contract, and if the Surety elects to act under paragraph above, then the responsibilities of the Surety to the OWNER shall not be greater than those of the CONTRACTOR under the Contract, and the responsibilities of the OWNER to the Surety shall not be greater than those of the OWNER under the Contract. To a limit of the amount of this Bond, but subject to commitment by the OWNER of the Balance of the Contract Price to mitigation of costs and damages on the Contract, the Surety is obligated without duplication for:
 - 6.1. The responsibilities of the CONTRACTOR for correction of defective Work and completion of the Contract;
 - 6.2. Additional legal, design professional and delay costs resulting from the CONTRACTOR's Default, and resulting from the actions or failure to act of the Surety; and
 - 6.3. Liquidated damages will be \$500.00 PER DAY caused by delayed performance or non-performance of the CONTRACTOR.
- 7. The Surety shall not be liable to the OWNER or others for obligations of the CONTRACTOR that are unrelated to the Contract, and the Balance of the Contract Price shall not be reduced or set off on account of any such unrelated obligations. No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to any person or entity other than the OWNER or its heirs, executors, administrators, or successors.
- 8. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Contract or to related subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.
- 9. Any proceeding, legal or equitable, under this Bond may be instituted in any court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the Work or part of the Work is located and shall be instituted within two years after CONTRACTOR Default or within two years after the CONTRACTOR ceased working or within two years after the Surety refuses or fails to perform its obligations under this Bond, whichever occurs first. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- 10. Notice to the Surety, the OWNER or the CONTRACTOR shall be mailed or delivered to the address shown on the signature page.
- 11. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the Contract was be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted here from and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory bond and not as a common law bond.

12. Definitions.

- 12.1 Balance of the Contract Price: The total amount payable by the OWNER to the CONTRACTOR under the Contract after all proper adjustments have been made, including allowance to the CONTRACTOR of any amounts received or to be received by the OWNER in settlement of insurance or other Claims for damages to which the CONTRACTOR is entitled, reduced by all valid and proper payments made to or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR under the Contract.
- 12.2. Contract: The agreement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR identified on the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.
- 12.3. CONTRACTOR Default: Failure of the CONTRACTOR, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to perform or otherwise to comply with the terms of the Contract.
- 12.4. OWNER Default: Failure of the OWNER, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the CONTRACTOR as required by the Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other terms thereof.

ATTACHMENT G PAYMENT BOND

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

CONTRACTOR (Name and Address): SURETY (Name and Address of Principal Place of Business):

OWNER (Name and Address):

City of Castle Hills City Secretary 209 Lemonwood Castle Hills, Texas 78213 (210) 342-2341

CONTRACT

COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS

PROJECT

COMMONS PARK IMPROVEMENTS

BOND

Bond Amount: 100%

Date (Not earlier than Contract Date): Amount:

Modifications to this Bond Form:

Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms printed on the reverse side hereof, do each cause this Payment Bond to be duly executed on its behalf by its authorized officer, agent, or representative.

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL (Corp. Seal) SURETY (Corp Seal)

Company: Company:

Signature: Signature: Name and Title: Name and Title:

(Attach Power of Attorney)

(Space is provided below for signatures of additional parties, if required.)

CONTRACTOR AS PRINCIPAL (Corp. Seal) SURETY (Corp Seal)

Company: Company:

Signature: Signature: Name and Title: Name and Title:

(Attach Power of Attorney)

- 1. The CONTRACTOR and the Surety, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns to the OWNER to pay for labor, materials and equipment furnished for use in the performance of the Contract, which is incorporated herein by reference.
- 2. With respect to the OWNER, this obligation shall be null and void if the CONTRACTOR:
 - 2.1. Promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due Claimants, and
 - 2.2. Defends, indemnifies and holds harmless the OWNER from all claims, demands, liens or suits by any person or entity who furnished labor, materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Contract, provided the OWNER has promptly notified the CONTRACTOR and the Surety (at the addresses described) of any claims, demands, liens or suits and tendered defense of such claims, demands, liens or suits to the CONTRACTOR and the Surety, and provided there is no OWNER Default.
- 3. With respect to Claimants, this obligation shall be null and void if the CONTRACTOR promptly makes payment, directly or indirectly, for all sums due.
- 4. The Surety shall have no obligation to Claimants under this Bond until:
 - 4.1. Claimants who are employed by or have a direct contract with the CONTRACTOR have given notice to the Surety (at the addresses described) and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the OWNER, stating that a claim is being made under this Bond and, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the claim.
 - 4.2. Claimants who do not have a direct contract with the CONTRACTOR:
 - A. Have furnished written notice to the CONTRACTOR and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the OWNER, within 90 days after having last performed labor or last furnished materials or equipment included in the claim stating, with substantial accuracy, the amount of the claim and the name of the party to whom the materials were furnished or supplied or for whom the labor was done or performed; and
 - B. Have either received a rejection in whole or in part from the CONTRACTOR, or not received within 30 days of furnishing the above notice any communication from the CONTRACTOR by which the CONTRACTOR had indicated the claim will be paid directly or indirectly; and
 - C. Not having been paid within the above 30 days, have sent a written notice to the Surety and sent a copy, or notice thereof, to the OWNER, stating that a claim is being made under this Bond and enclosing a copy of the previous written notice furnished to the CONTRACTOR.
 - D. If a notice required is given by the OWNER to the CONTRACTOR or to the Surety, that is sufficient compliance.
- 5. When the Claimant has satisfied the conditions, the Surety shall promptly and at the Surety's expense take the following actions:
 - 5.1. Send an answer to the Claimant, with a copy to the OWNER, within 45 days after receipt of the claim, stating the amounts that are undisputed and the basis for challenging any amounts that are disputed.

- 5.2. Pay or arrange for payment of any undisputed amounts.
- 6. The Surety's total obligation shall not exceed the amount of this Bond, and the amount of this Bond shall be credited for any payments made in good faith by the Surety.
- 7. Amounts owed by the OWNER to the CONTRACTOR under the Contract shall be used for the performance of the Contract and to satisfy claims, if any, under any Performance Bond. By the CONTRACTOR furnishing and the OWNER accepting this Bond, they agree that all funds earned by the CONTRACTOR in the performance of the Contract are dedicated to satisfy obligations of the CONTRACTOR and the Surety under this Bond, subject to the OWNER's priority to use the funds for the completion of the Work.
- 8. The Surety shall not be liable to the OWNER, Claimants or others for obligations of the CONTRACTOR that are unrelated to the Contract. The OWNER shall not be liable for payment of any costs or expenses of any Claimant under this Bond, and shall have under this Bond no obligations to make payments to, give notices on behalf of, or otherwise have obligations to Claimants under this Bond.
- 9. The Surety hereby waives notice of any change, including changes of time, to the Contract or to related Subcontracts, purchase orders and other obligations.
- 10. No suit or action shall be commenced by a Claimant under this Bond other than in a court of competent jurisdiction in the location in which the Work or part of the Work is located or after the expiration of one year from the date (1) on which the Claimant gave the notice required, or (2) on which the last labor or service was performed by anyone or the last materials or equipment were furnished by anyone under the Construction Contract, whichever of (1) or (2) first occurs. If the provisions of this paragraph are void or prohibited by law, the minimum period of limitation available to sureties as a defense in the jurisdiction of the suit shall be applicable.
- 11. Notice to the Surety, the OWNER or the CONTRACTOR shall be mailed or delivered to the addresses shown on the signature page. Actual receipt of notice by Surety, the OWNER or the CONTRACTOR, however accomplished, shall be sufficient compliance as of the date received at the address shown on the signature page.
- 12. When this Bond has been furnished to comply with a statutory or other legal requirement in the location where the Contract was to be performed, any provision in this Bond conflicting with said statutory or legal requirement shall be deemed deleted here from and provisions conforming to such statutory or other legal requirement shall be deemed incorporated herein. The intent is that this Bond shall be construed as a statutory Bond and not as a common law bond.
- 13. Upon request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of this Bond, the CONTRACTOR shall promptly furnish a copy of this Bond or shall permit a copy to be made.

14. DEFINITIONS

14.1. Claimant: An individual or entity having a direct contract with the CONTRACTOR or with a Subcontractor of the CONTRACTOR to furnish labor, materials or equipment for use in the performance of the Contract. The intent of this Bond shall be to include without limitation in the terms "labor, materials or equipment" that part of water, gas, power, light, heat, oil, gasoline, telephone service or rental equipment used in the Contract, architectural and engineering services required for performance of the Work of the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR's Subcontractors, and all other items for which a mechanic's lien may be asserted in the jurisdiction where the labor, materials or equipment were furnished.

- 14.2. Contract: The agreement between the OWNER and the CONTRACTOR identified on the signature page, including all Contract Documents and changes thereto.
- 14.3. OWNER Default: Failure of the OWNER, which has neither been remedied nor waived, to pay the CONTRACTOR as required by the Contract or to perform and complete or comply with the other terms thereof.

ATTACHMENT H CONTRACTOR'S DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

All questions must be answered, or your bid will be deemed non-responsive and subject to rejection. The data given must be clear and comprehensive. This statement must be notarized. If necessary, questions may be answered on separate attached sheets. The bidder may submit any additional information he desires.

| 1. | The Bidders Dis | sclosure Statement i | s submitted to the Ci | ity of Castle Hills, Texas by: |
|----------------|--|------------------------|-----------------------------|---|
| a (| Corporation | a Partnership | a Texas Joint Ver | nture an Individual |
| Addres | ss: | | | |
| City:_ | | | State: | Zip Code: |
| 2. | Years in busines | ss under present bus | siness name; | |
| Years 4. | of experience in o | construction work o | of type called for in the | his contract is: |
| | A General Con | tractor | A Subcontractor | |
| 5. | What projects ha | s your organization | completed? List mo | ost recent FIRST. |
| Contra Amou | Type of Work | Date Completed | Owner's Name and Address | Contact Telephone No. |
| 5. | What projects do | oes your organization | on have underway as | s of this date? |
| | Contract Amount | Type of Work | | Owner's Name and Address |
| 6. | Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? Yes No. If "Yes", state where and why. | | | |
| 7. | Are you at present in any lawsuits involving construction work of any type? Yes No If "Yes", explain: | | | |
| 8. will be | | 2 7 2 | 1 2 | e administrative manager for the went will be Mr. (Ms.) |
| 9. | What experience | e in this type in this | type of work does th | he individual designated above as |

What portion of the work do you intend to subcontract?

resident superintendent have?

10.

- 11. What equipment do you own that is available for the proposed work? (Description, Quantity, Capacity, Size, Years in Service, Present Condition, Location)
- 12. Have you received firm offers from suppliers or manufacturers for all major items of material and/or equipment within the price totals used in preparing your proposal?

| | Yes | No |
|------------------------|--|--|
| Credit Available: \$ _ | | Bank Reference: |
| Bonding capacity ava | ilable: \$ | |
| information requested | by the Owner in veritory of this questionn | requests any person, firm or corporation to furnish any fication of the recitals comprising this Bidders Disclosure naire guarantees the truth and accuracy of all statements sed. |
| Date this | _day of | |
| By: | | |
| Title: | | |
| STATE OF | COUNTY OF | · |
| Subscribed and sworn | to before me this the | day of, 20 |
| Notary Public | | |
| My commission expir | es: | |

ATTACHMENT I TERMS & CONDITIONS

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE FOLLOWING INSURANCE:

1. Workers' Compensation Insurance Coverage.

The insurance carrier shall be an admitted carrier in the State of Texas.

A. Definitions:

Certificate of coverage ("certificate") - A copy of a certificate of insurance, a certificate of authority to self-insure issued by the commission, or a coverage agreement (TWCC-81, TWCC-82, TWCC-83, or TWCC-84), showing statutory workers compensation insurance coverage for the person's or entity's employees providing services on a project, for the duration of the project.

Duration of the project - includes the time from the beginning of the work on the project until the contractor's/person's work on the project has been completed and accepted by the governmental entity.

Person's providing services on the project ("subcontractor" in section 406.096) - includes all persons or entities performing all or part of the services the contractor has undertaken to perform on the project, regardless of whether that person contracted directly with the contractor and regardless of whether that person has employees. This includes, without limitation, independent contractors, subcontractors, leasing companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or employees of any entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the project.

"Services" include, without limitation, providing, hauling, or delivering equipment or materials, or providing labor, transportation, or other service related to a project. "Services" does not include activities unrelated to the project, such as food/beverage vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets.

- B. The contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011 (44) for all employees of the contractor providing services on the project, for the duration of the project.
- C. The contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the governmental entity prior to being awarded the contract.
- D. If the coverage period shown on the contractor's current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project, the contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new certificate of coverage with the governmental entity showing that coverage has been extended.

- E. The contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project, and provide to the governmental entity:
 - (1) a certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project, so the governmental entity will have on file certificates of coverage for all persons providing services on the project; and
 - (2) no later than seven days after receipt by the contractor, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project.
- F. The contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the project and for one year thereafter.
- G. The contractor shall notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10 days after the contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project.
- H. The contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed by the Texas Workers' Compensation Commission, informing all persons providing services on the project that they are required to be covered, and stating how a person may verify coverage and report lack of coverage.
- I. The contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services on a project, to:
 - (1) provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011 (44) for all of its employees providing services on the project, for the duration of the project;
 - (2) provide to the contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the project, a certificate of coverage showing that coverage is being provided services on the project for the duration of the project;
 - (3) provide the contractor, prior to the end of the coverage period, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project;
 - (4) obtain from each other person with whom it contracts, and provide to the contractor:
 - (a) a certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work

on the project; and

- (b) a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, prior to the end of the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the current coverage ends during the duration of the project;
- (5) retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for one year thereafter;
- (6) notify the governmental entity in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within 10 days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project; and
- (7) contractually require each person with whom it contracts, to performs as required by paragraphs (1) (7), with the certificates of coverage to be provided to the person for whom they are providing services.
- J. By signing this contract or providing or causing to be a provided a certificate of coverage, the contractor is representing to the governmental entity that all employees of the contractor who will provide services on the project will be covered by workers' compensation coverage for the duration of the project, that the coverage will be based on proper reporting or classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all coverage agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-insured, with the commission's Division of Self-Insurance Regulation. Providing false or misleading information may subject the contractor to administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil penalties, or civil actions.
- K. The contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the contractor which entitles the governmental entity to declare the contract void if the contractor does not remedy the breach within ten days after receipt of the notice of breach from the governmental entity.

2. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance

This insurance shall:

- A. Be in an amount not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence, with a deductible of not more than \$2,500;
- B. Include coverage for the liability assumed by the Contractor under Item F. (Indemnity);
- C. Include completed operation coverage which is to be kept in force by the Contractor for a period of not less than one year after the completion of the work

provided for or performed under these specifications;

D. Not be subject to any of the special property damage liability exclusions commonly referred to as the XCU exclusions pertaining to blasting or explosion, collapse, or structural damage and underground property;

- E. Not be subject to any exclusion of property used by the insured or property in the case, custody or control of the insured or property as to which the insured for any purpose is exercising physical control;
- F. In naming the City of Castle Hills as an additional insured on your comprehensive General Liability Insurance, the following words apply:

"Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City of Castle Hills, its agents and employees from and against any liability, loss, cost and expense ("Liability") claimed by a third party (including reasonable attorney's fees and cost of defense) resulting from Contractor's performance of the Work to the extent that such Liability:

- (1) is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to the injury to or destruction of tangible personal property; and,
- (2) is caused or contributed to by any neglect or fault of Contractor, its subcontractors, or their respective employees.

Where liability is attributable to the joint negligence or fault of Contractor and any other person (including Owner), Contractor's duty of indemnification shall be limited to Contractor's allocable share of such joint negligence or fault."

- G. The Insurance company must have as a minimum a current A.M. Best rating of A.
- 3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability in the following amounts:

Bodily Injury \$1,000,000 per person

\$3,000,000 per accident

Property Damage \$300,000 per accident

- 4. General Requirements for Insurance Coverage
 - A. The Certificate of Insurance furnished by the Contractor shall show by specific reference that each of the foregoing items have been provided for;
 - B. Certificates of Insurance required for each copy of the agreement which specifically set forth evidence of all required coverage will be filed with the City prior to the City's execution of the contract. Worker's Compensation Insurance coverage must be provided to the City prior to the City's award of the contract.
 - C. The Certificates of Insurance furnished by the contractor as evidence of the Insurance maintained by the contractor will include a clause obligating the Insurer to give the City of Castle Hills ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation or any material

change in the insurance coverage.

D. Waiver of Subrogation: The City of Castle Hills and the Contractor waive all rights and the rights of their respective insurance companies against each other for damages

caused by fire or other perils to the extent such damages are covered by property insurance purchased by either party.

5. Anti-Discrimination in Employment

- A. The contractor (successful bidder) and/or any subcontractor(s), if permitted, certifies complete compliance with the Federal Civil Rights Law and the Americans with Disabilities Act, agreeing to non-discrimination based on race, age, color, religion, disability, gender, ancestry, national origin, or place of birth in employment practices, programs and services shall include but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination, rates of pay or other compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
- B. The contractor shall in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, age, color, religion, disability, gender, ancestry, national origin, or place of birth.
- C. Upon request by the City of Castle Hills, the contractor shall furnish all information or reports required to investigate his/her payrolls and personnel records which pertain to current contract(s) with the City for purposes of ascertaining compliance with this non-discrimination certification.

6. General Independent Contractor Clause

This agreement does not create an employer relationship between the parties. It is the parties' intention that the contractor will be an independent contractor and not the City of Castle Hills employee for all purposes, including, but not limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum wage and overtime payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, Texas workers' compensation law and Texas unemployment insurance law. The contractor will retain sole and absolute discretion in the judgment of the manner and means of carrying out the contractor's activities and responsibilities hereunder. The contractor agrees that it is a separate and independent enterprise from the City of Castle Hills, that it has a full opportunity to find other business, that it has made its own investment in its business, and that it will utilize a high level of skill necessary to perform the work. This agreement shall not be construed as creating any joint employment relationship between the contractor and the City of Castle Hills and the City

of Castle Hills will not be liable for any obligation incurred by the contractor, including but not limited to unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums.

7. Hot Goods Clause

The bidder hereby agrees that in the execution of the work he or she will comply with all applicable provisions of Sections 6, 7, and 12 of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, and that there will be no violations of the "hot goods" or "hot cargo" provisions of the Act involving restrictions on the use of underage employees.

8. Fire Safety

The contractor shall comply with all City regulations including those regarding Fire Safety. In this regard he shall comply with all instructions of the City Fire Marshall during the course of the work.

9. Hazard Communications Act

In compliance with Article 5182b, Texas Revised Civil Statutes, all employers are required to train and educate employees on the safe use and handling of hazardous materials that employees may be exposed to in the workplace. The City of Castle Hills's Fire Chief is designated as the City's HazComm Officer. Contractors of the City are also required to comply with the requirements of this Act.

Contractors are entitled to a copy of the City's workplace chemical list to which the contractor, its employees and agents may be exposed to in the workplace. Contractors are also entitled to a copy of all MSDS sheets for any hazardous chemicals which the City may have in the work place. Contractors have the obligation to inform its employees and agents of all of these requirements. Contractor shall furnish the City with the MSDS sheets for any hazardous chemical brought into the City workplace that City employees will have exposure to. Contractors shall sign the Attachment 5, "Hazard Communications Contractor Acknowledgment" certifying receipt of this information.

10. FIRE SAFETY

The contractor shall comply with all City regulations including those regarding Fire Safety. In this regard, he shall comply with all instructions of the City Fire Marshall during the course of the work.

ATTACHMENT J HAZARD COMMUNICATIONS

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| IT IS HEREBY UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT | | |
|--|--|--|
| , a | a Contractor under Contract dated the | |
| day of | | |
| with the City of Castle Hills has received | d from the City notice of the Contractor's rights under the Texas | |
| Hazards Communications Act, the chem | nical list and material safety data sheets for hazardous chemicals | |
| that will be present in the City work area | 1. | |
| | understands our obligation to inform our employees and agents of | |
| the information provided. Material safet | y data sheets have been received for the following chemicals. | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| CONTRACTOR NAME: | | |
| NAME OF AUTHORIZED AGENT: | | |
| TITLE OF AUTHORIZED AGENT: | | |
| SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED AGENT: | | |
| DATE: | | |

ATTACHMENT K CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

| CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE For vendor doing business with local governmental entity | FORM CIQ |
|--|----------------------------------|
| This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session. | OFFICE USE ONLY |
| This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a). | Date Received |
| By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code. | |
| A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a misdemeanor. | |
| Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity. | |
| Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. (The law re completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than the 7th busines you became aware that the originally filed questionnaire was incomplete or inaccurate.) | ss day after the date on which |
| Name of local government officer about whom the information is being disclosed. | |
| Name of Officer | |
| Describe each employment or other business relationship with the local government offi officer, as described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A). Also describe any family relationship with Complete subparts A and B for each employment or business relationship described. Attac CIQ as necessary. | th the local government officer. |
| A. Is the local government officer or a family member of the officer receiving or life other than investment income, from the vendor? | ikely to receive taxable income, |
| Yes No | |
| B. Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment of the local government officer or a family member of the officer AND the taxable local governmental entity? | |
| Yes No | |
| Describe each employment or business relationship that the vendor named in Section 1 n other business entity with respect to which the local government officer serves as an cownership interest of one percent or more. | |
| Check this box if the vendor has given the local government officer or a family member as described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding gifts described in Section 176.003(a)(2)(B). | |
| 7 | |
| Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity | Date |

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE

For vendor doing business with local governmental entity

A complete copy of Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code may be found at http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.176.htm. For easy reference, below are some of the sections cited on this form.

<u>Local Government Code § 176.001(1-a)</u>: "Business relationship" means a connection between two or more parties based on commercial activity of one of the parties. The term does not include a connection based on:

- (A) a transaction that is subject to rate or fee regulation by a federal, state, or local governmental entity or an agency of a federal, state, or local governmental entity;
- (B) a transaction conducted at a price and subject to terms available to the public; or
- (C) a purchase or lease of goods or services from a person that is chartered by a state or federal agency and that is subject to regular examination by, and reporting to, that agency.

Local Government Code § 176.003(a)(2)(A) and (B):

- (a) A local government officer shall file a conflicts disclosure statement with respect to a vendor if:
 - (2) the vendor:
 - (A) has an employment or other business relationship with the local government officer or a family member of the officer that results in the officer or family member receiving taxable income, other than investment income, that exceeds \$2,500 during the 12-month period preceding the date that the officer becomes aware that
 - (i) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or
 - (ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor:
 - (B) has given to the local government officer or a family member of the officer one or more gifts that have an aggregate value of more than \$100 in the 12-month period preceding the date the officer becomes aware that:
 - (i) a contract between the local governmental entity and vendor has been executed; or
 - (ii) the local governmental entity is considering entering into a contract with the vendor.

Local Government Code § 176.006(a) and (a-1)

- (a) A vendor shall file a completed conflict of interest questionnaire if the vendor has a business relationship with a local governmental entity and:
 - (1) has an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, described by Section 176.003(a)(2)(A);
 - (2) has given a local government officer of that local governmental entity, or a family member of the officer, one or more gifts with the aggregate value specified by Section 176.003(a)(2)(B), excluding any gift described by Section 176.003(a-1); or
 - (3) has a family relationship with a local government officer of that local governmental entity.
- (a-1) The completed conflict of interest questionnaire must be filed with the appropriate records administrator not later than the seventh business day after the later of:
 - (1) the date that the vendor:
 - (A) begins discussions or negotiations to enter into a contract with the local governmental entity; or
 - (B) submits to the local governmental entity an application, response to a request for proposals or bids, correspondence, or another writing related to a potential contract with the local governmental entity; or
 - (2) the date the vendor becomes aware:
 - (A) of an employment or other business relationship with a local government officer, or a family member of the officer, described by Subsection (a);
 - (B) that the vendor has given one or more gifts described by Subsection (a); or
 - (C) of a family relationship with a local government officer.

ATTACHMENT L FORM 1295 - TEXAS ETHICS COMMISSION

This document is available on-line at the following link: https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/1295.pdf

NOTE: The successful vendor, upon award of contract by City Council, shall file Form 1295 with the Texas Ethics Commission and supply a completed copy to the Purchasing Agent within one week. This form must be filed on-line at https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/1295.pdf.

ATTACHMENT M LIST OF GOVERNING SPECIFICATIONS

CITY OF SAN ANTONIO, SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM AND TXDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION AND ASSOCIATED SPECIAL PROVISIONS ARE MADE A PART OF THIS SECTION BY REFERENCE. IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF ALL BIDDERS TO BE FAMILIAR WITH THESE DOCUMENTS PRIOR TO SUBMITTING A BID. ALL ITEMS ARE AVAILABLE ONLINE AT:

http://www.sanantonio.gov/TCI/CurrentVendorResources/StandardSpecificationsandDetails.aspx

https://apps.saws.org/business_center/specs/constspecs/

https://www.dot.state.tx.us/business/specifications.htm

ALLSTANDARDSPECIFICATIONS AND SPECIAL SPECIFICATIONS APPLICABLE TO THIS PROJECT ARE IDENTIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

CTIYOFSAN ANTONIOSTANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION JUNE 2008 AND LATEST REVISIONS

| ITEM NO. | DESCRIPTION |
|----------|---|
| 100 | MOBILIZATION |
| 101 | PREPARING RIGHT OF WAY |
| 103 | REMOVE CONCRETE |
| 104 | STREET EXCAVATION |
| 105 | CHANNEL EXCAVATION |
| 106 | BOX CULVERT EXCAVATION AND BACKFILLING |
| 107 | EMBANKMENT |
| 209 | CONCRETE PAVEMENT |
| 210 | ROLLING |
| 220 | BLADING |
| 300 | CONCRETE |
| 301 | REINFORCING STEEL |
| 303 | WELDED WIRE FLAT SHEETS |
| 306 | STRUCTURALEXCAVATION |
| 307 | CONCRETE STRUCTURES |
| 311 | CONCRETE SURFACE FINISH |
| 400 | EXCAVATION, TRENCHING, AND BACKFILL |
| 502 | CONCRETE SIDEWALKS |
| 515 | TOPSOIL |
| 516 | SODDING |
| | |
| ITEM NO. | DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED) |
| 540 | TEMPORARY EROSION, SEDIMENTATION AND WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION AND |
| | CONTROL |
| 550 | TRENCH EXCAVATION SAFETY PROTECTION |
| 552 | REMOVING AND RELOCATING IRRIGATION SYSTEMS |
| | |

CITY OF SAN ANTONIO STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS SPECIAL PROVISIONS

502 CONCRETE SIDEWALKS-May 2009